
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room, Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven, CA28 7SJ 

Date: Thursday, 21st November, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Rose Blaney Tel: 01946 598454

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting). 

Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any 
other interests. 

Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or vote in 
any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

Members are advised that they should leave the room during consideration 
of any items of business in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2019 1 - 6

4. Executive Forward Plan 7 - 14

Public Document Pack



5. Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee - Verbal Update from OSC 
representative 

6. Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) - Verbal Update from OSC 
representative 

7. Housing 

8. Member Protocol Task and Finish Group Report 15 - 30

9. Accessible Information Policy Review Task and Finish Group Report 31 - 48

10. 2019/20 Finance Report - Quarter 2 49 - 66

11. 2019/20 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 2 67 - 84

12. OSC Audit Report 85 - 92

13. Corporate Strategy 2020-2024 

14. Task and Finish Group Monitoring 93 - 94

15. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 95 - 100

16. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Thursday 19 December 2019 at 2pm in the Bainbridge Room, Copeland Centre.

Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), 
Gemma Dinsdale, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Linda Jones-Bulman, 
Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt and Eileen Weir

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598454
E-mail: rose.blaney@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2019

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; Felicity Wilson, Gemma Dinsdale, 
Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Andy Pratt

Officers: Julie Betteridge (Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities), James Young 
(Scrutiny Officer) and Rose Blaney (Electoral Services Officer)

OSC 19/34 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mike Hawkins and Eileen Weir.

OSC 19/35 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

Councillor Jeanette Forster declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 5 (Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee – Verbal Update) due to being employed by the National Health 
Service.

OSC 19/36 Minutes of the meetings held on 19 August 2019 and 22 August 2019 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meetings held on 19 August and 22 August 2019 be 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

OSC 19/37 Executive Forward Plan 

Committee considered the Executive Forward Plan.

During the discussion that followed, it was noted that the Executive Forward Plan does not 
reflect the most up to date information that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
required.

Scrutiny Officer clarified that the Nuclear Position Statements were still in draft form and 
were going to Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board (SNEB) first before going to OSC and will 
clarify and check the date on the Executive Forward Plan, but agreed that this decision 
needed to be reflected in the Forward Plan. The Scrutiny Officer also noted, recalling back to 
the OSC training, that the call in procedure to bring items to OSC is very specific and should 
only be used in extreme circumstances.
 
The Chair clarified that OSC is to scrutinise first. But highlights that there is a gap that needs 
to be filled with a plan that will stop any doubts of what should be coming before OSC.

RESOLVED - That the Scrutiny Officer will liaise with the Executive Forward Plan author to 
request an update to the plan with members’ comments. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



OSC 19/38 Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

The Chair had attended one meeting with the next meeting scheduled for Monday 7 October 
2019. Part of the group is to look at the Integrated Care Community (ICC) across Cumbria 
which has so far included a visit to Morecambe Bay and Maryport Hospital. The Chair made 
clear that he believed that there is currently a far better service in the north of the county 
than in the south of the county. The north of the county currently has eight hubs that are 
open seven days a week from 8am until 8pm and are dealing with approximately 645 calls in a 
day with five or six people working there. NHS North (Newcastle Area) are going to present a 
seminar to make the quality of care consistent throughout Cumbria. There is currently no 
date for the seminar.

Councillor Felicity Wilson noted that there is a slight inconsistency in the health provision 
between the north and the south of Copeland, the south is covered by Morecambe Bay 
Health Authority and the north by North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust. She hopes 
that all issues from both parts of the county are met at the Cumbria Health Scrutiny 
Committee. Councillor Wilson also noted that in previous years there had been two task and 
finish groups set up for Health and Wellbeing in the borough for the north and south. 
Requested that this subject be put back on the task and finish group agenda.

RESOLVED – That: 
a) the update be noted and 
b) the Chair of OSC to attend the seminar and feedback to the committee.

OSC 19/39 Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 

Councillor Pollen has been in the position of OSC representative at STTUG for the past 18 
months. Items highlighted from the last STTUG were:

 Annualised hours
 Recruitment in the Parks Department
 Completion of Service Reviews in IT and Finance
 Health and Safety Update
 Recent employee survey results

Noted that there were no regional union officers at the meeting but made the committee 
aware this was not a criticism as they had a significant workload and can’t always attend.

Scrutiny Officer clarified that the STTUG minutes are published on the Intranet which is for 
internal staff only, whereas OSC minutes are published on the Internet and therefore 
available for the public to view and as a result, STTUG minutes cannot be brought to OSC.

RESOLVED – That the update be noted.

Page 2



OSC 19/40 Appointment to Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 

Note: Councillor Meteer made a declaration of interest here as he has a relative employed by 
the authority.

Councillor Pollen spoke about how he enjoyed the work he has undertaken as the OSC 
representative on STTUG. He explained the importance of STTUG in relation to the council as 
a whole and would encourage other members of the committee to consider this role in the 
future. 

The Chair commended Councillor Pollen for his performance in the role for the last 18 
months. He recommended that Councillor Pollen be put forward again for the role. This was 
subsequently seconded and

RESOLVED – That Councillor Sam Pollen be confirmed as the OSC representative at STTUG for 
the municipal year 2019/20.

OSC 19/41 Housing 

The Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities gave an update on Housing as part of her 
portfolio; Homelessness Strategy Action Plan and Housing Strategy Action Plan are being 
developed, additional funding has been procured to keep the Domestic Abuse Project funded 
for the next two years and additional money has been moved to ensure the employment of 
the Empty Homes Officer for a further 18 months from March 2020. He has hit the ground 
running and has made a huge difference, he is part time (three days a week). It was also 
noted that there are around 1200 empty properties in Copeland and around 81 properties 
have been brought back into use in the last six months.

RESOLVED – That:
a) the update be noted and 
b) the Scrutiny Officer to invite the Empty Homes Officer to present a report to OSC on 

the progress made in tackling empty homes in Copeland.

OSC 19/42 High Street Fund Update 

The Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities gave an update on the progress on the 
Council’s High Street Fund bid. Copeland are still in process of building the business case and 
therefore it is still a commercially sensitive topic. This is the reason as to why it is not an in-
depth report being presented but rather an overview of where the project is. Some of the 
items that are being considered are how to attract more young professionals into the area to 
stay as well as to work. The focus will be on King Street, Strand Street and the Market Square. 
The rest of the town will also be included in the regeneration. There is still no guidance or 
template for the business plan as the government have not published any. Deadlines have 
been moved; the draft business case deadline is now 15 January 2020 and the bid deadline is 
now the end of April 2020. Copeland received the maximum grant of £150,000 to help the 
Council create the business plan. The grant has also enabled the Council to hire experts who 
had previously managed successful grant applications for Copeland.

Page 3



The following discussions included; parking arrangements, traffic and transport issues, digital, 
ecological solutions and investments, synergy between the existing and the new population, 
signage, empty buildings with private landlords, dilapidated buildings in Egremont, schemes 
to help open your own business and an update on the types of funding currently 
available/upcoming for Copeland.

RESOLVED – That:

 OSC to receive Whitehaven Vision at earliest possible opportunity.
 the Tourism Officer to update OSC on progress.
 OSC receive information on potential funding opportunities during 2019/20.
 the Scrutiny Officer to contact Britain’s Energy Coast (BEC) concerning a meeting on 

the North Shore Regeneration project.

OSC 19/43 2019/2020 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 1 

The Policy Officer presented the 2019/2020 Council Performance Plan – Quarter 1. 
The following discussion included; the Council’s website refresh, the Social Inclusion Policy, 
commercial activity and new commercial strategy, household waste and key performance 
indicators. 

The Policy Officer was asked to send the actual tonnage figures for the household waste 
figures to Committee members.

RESOLVED – That:

a) the progress and performance against the Corporate Strategy be noted.
b) the remedial actions taken to improve compliance with targets be noted.
c) the new Commercial Strategy to be a future OSC agenda item.

OSC 19/44 Task and Finish Group Updates 

The Scrutiny Officer presented the Task and Finish Group updates.

There are four Task and Finish Groups that are in the process of being started. Currently 
finalising members who will be on the groups. The first meetings will all be the scoping 
meeting except for the Accessible Information Policy group which is a revisit. It was noted 
that not much interest had been expressed from outside of OSC.

RESOLVED – That:

a) the Scrutiny Officer be requested to send out a reminder email to all councillors for 
membership of Task and Finish Groups with a two week cut-off date, so that the task 
and finish groups can begin as soon as possible. 

b) that the Older People and Social Prescribing Task and Finish Group be held jointly with 
the County Council.

Page 4



OSC 19/45 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

OSC Work Programme was presented by the Scrutiny Officer. 

Feedback from the Corporate Leadership Team to refresh the work programme and to be 
presented in a different format. 

Members reminded to raise agenda items with the Chair of OSC for inclusion on future 
agendas.

RESOLVED – Scrutiny Officer to create an updated work programme with further information 
as required. 

OSC 19/46 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on Thursday 21 
November 2019 at 2pm in the Bainbridge Room, Copeland Centre.

The Meeting closed at 3.50 pm 

Chair

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

EXEC 4 November 2019
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN 

 
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period. 
 
A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough. 
 
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred. 
 
Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 
Deputy Mayor, Michael McVeigh, Gwynneth Everett and Steven Morgan.
 
Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 
containing confidential or exempt information. 
 

  

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Nuclear Position 
Statements

Executive Executive 
4 November 2019

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive 
4 November 2019 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2019/20 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive 
4 November 2019 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

Future high streets 
fund and potential 
town deals business 
case development 
update. 

Executive  Executive 
4 November 2019 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Yes No

Local Plan Council Special Council 
19 November 2019

Environment & Place
Cllr Michael McVeigh

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

PFI Council Special Council 
19 November 2019

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

P
age 8



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Constitution 
Refresh/Update

Council Special Council 
19 November 2019

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Constitution 
Refresh/Update

Council Council 
2 December 2019

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Strategic Asset 
Management Plan

Council Council 
2 December 2019

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Corporate Strategy Executive  Executive 
9 December 2019

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Inclusive Growth 
Update

Executive Executive 
9 December 2019 

Inclusive Communities
Gwynneth Everett

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Yes No

Corporate Peer 
Challenge Action 
Plan Report

Executive Executive 
9 December 2019 

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

People Strategy Executive Executive 
9 December 2019 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No Yes

P
age 9



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Future High Street 
Fund

Executive Executive 
9 December 2019

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities 

Yes Yes

Copeland’s Climate 
Position Statement

Executive Executive 
9 December 2019 

Environment & Place
Cllr Michael McVeigh

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Health and Safety 
Monitoring ½ Yearly 
Report  

Executive  Executive 
9 December 2019

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive

No No

Procurement & 
Contract 
Management 
Strategy

Executive  Executive 
9 December 2019

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 

No No

Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy

Executive  Executive 
13 January 2020 

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities 

Yes No

Millom Hub Executive  OSC
6 February 2020

Executive 
10 February 2020 
           

Inclusive Communities
Gwynneth Everett

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Yes No

P
age 10



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Discount and 
Premium Policy

Council Executive 
13 January 2020

Council 
10 February 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Yes No

Draft Budget Council Executive 
13 January 2020

OSC
14 January 2020

Executive
27 January 2020

Council 
10 February 2020

Council (prov)
24 February 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Bi-Annual 
Monitoring Officer’s 
Report

Council Council 
10 February 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No No

P
age 11



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Pay Policy Statement Council Council 
10 February 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Constitution – 
Financial Regulations

Council Council 
10 February 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive 
10 February 2020 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2019/20 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive 
10 February 2020 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

Leisure Contract Executive  OSC
6 February 2020

Executive 
10 February 2020 
            

Inclusive Communities
Cllr Gwynneth Everett

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Yes No

Regeneration update Executive OSC
6 April 2020
Executive 
20 April 2020 

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Julie Betteridge   – 
Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Yes No

P
age 12



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Local Plan Preferred 
Options

Council Council 
20 April 2020

Environment & Place
Cllr Michael McVeigh

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 4 

Executive  Executive 
May 2020 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2019/20 Finance 
Report – Quarter 4 

Executive  Executive 
May 2020 
            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report of Task and Finish Group – Members’ Planning Protocol

REPORT FROM: Member Protocol Task and Finish Group
LEAD MEMEBER: Cllr Andy Pratt
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee? 
The Member Protocol Task and Finish Group have finished their work and 
present their recommendations for the Committee to consider.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to:

(a) Approve the Member Protocol and recommend to Council that it be 
approved; and

(b) Note the associated Member Protocol on planning site visits, 
approved by the Standards and Ethics Committee on the 5th 
November 2019, which will also be referred to Council for approval.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Member Protocol Task and Finish Group comprised of Councillor 
Andy Pratt as Chair and Councillors Felicity Wilson, Jackie Bowman 
and Jeanette Forster.

1.2 The Group met once and have now completed their work.

2.0 DETAIL

2.1 The Member Protocol was originally a part of a report to Full Council 
on 25 June 2019 as part of revisions to the Planning Chapter of the 
Copeland Borough Council Constitution. At that meeting, it was 
recommended that the entirety of the revisions were passed to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) to be scrutinised.

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



2.2 At the meeting of OSC on 19 August, the Committee recommended 
that the Member Protocol Task and Finish Group be established to 
ensure that the protocol was complete and robust.

2.3 At the meeting of the Task and Finish Group, the Solicitor produced a 
revised draft protocol for members to consider. The proposed 
protocol was extended to cover both regulatory committees, 
Licensing Committee as well as Planning Panel, as both committees 
deal with quasi-judicial matters.

2.4 Members asked for provision for independent members to be placed 
in part A4 of the protocol to ensure that the needs of all members 
were taken into account. Provision was made for the Electoral and 
Democratic Services Manager to address any matters that may arise 
in relation to A4.

2.5 Members asked for it to be clearly stated in the protocol that 
members being trained to the highest standard in order to perform 
their duties.

2.6 The revised draft protocol is attached as Appendix A to this report.

2.7 Work has also been ongoing in respect of a separate protocol relating 
to planning site visits. Members will recall that at Council, on the 9th 
September 2019, concern was raised over the ability of county and 
parish councillors, as well as ward councillors, to attend site visits. 
The original draft sought to prevent them attending and members 
considered this to be inappropriate. Council referred the matter to 
the Standards and Ethics Committee for further consideration. That 
Committee considered the matter on the 5th November 2019. They 
received a draft protocol which suggested a solution so that where 
local representatives are invited to a site visit that the planning 
applicant is also invited. That revised protocol as approved by that 
Committee is attached as Appendix B to this report for members’ 
information. That protocol will also be reported to Council for 
approval. 

Page 16



3.0 CONCLUSION

3.1 The Task and Finish Group believe that the changes made to the 
protocol will ensure that the members of Copeland Borough Council 
will continue to perform to the best of their abilities and recommend 
that Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree the Member Protocol.

4.0 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

4.1 Legal Comments: The original report to Council highlighted a concern 
that parish councillors attending a site visit, to the exclusion of the 
applicant, could give rise to an appearance of bias and make any 
subsequent decision challengeable. The proposed protocol now 
removes this risk.

4.2 Monitoring Officer Comments: Supportive of legal comments; the 
protocol for site visits introduces appropriate equality and achieves 
the outcome of removing the risk of the appearance of bias, and, by 
implication, removes any associated or subsequent challenge related 
thereto.

4.3 Section 151 Officer Comments: Additional costs may be incurred if 
there are additional site visits.

4.4 Equality Impact Assessment Comments:

Page 17



List of Appendices

A. Protocol for Licensing Committee and Planning Panel Members; and
B. Protocol for Planning Panel site visits.

Page 18



Appendix A

PROTOCOL FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE AND PLANNING PANEL MEMBERS

The Licensing Committee and Planning Panel are regulatory committees dealing with 
quasi-judicial matters with rights of appeal in both cases to the courts and in respect of 
the Planning Panel, the Secretary of State also.

It is important that the integrity of the Licensing Committee and Planning Panel (“the 
Committees”) are upheld at all times and that members are professional and competent 
when determining applications before the Committees. This protocol seeks to assist and 
support members of the Committee in undertaking their role as a member of such.

Members are reminded that this protocol is in addition to the Council`s Code of Conduct 
as set out in the Council`s Constitution which applies to all members. 

A. ATTENDANCE 

When considering applications it is important that members making a decision have heard 
all the evidence. It is inappropriate for members to only participate in part of a hearing – it is 
either all or nothing. If a member is absent from part they need to ‘catch up’. The following 
rules should assist members:

1.  If a member is on a Committee they should make every effort to attend. This is 
particularly so in respect of Licensing Sub-Committee where, by statute, comprise of 
three members and cannot sit unless all three are present. A low attendance at 
other committees can give the wrong impression. If a member cannot attend they 
must give their apologies as soon as possible and at least one day before the 
meeting. This will allow a meeting to be reconvened if it is unlikely to be quorate.

2. Failure to attend a site visit will remove Members’ rights to take part in the debate 
on that particular application at the relevant Committee unless they can ‘catch up’.  
Whether they can do so depends upon the circumstances of the site visit. It will not 
usually be possible to catch up if it was, for example, a site visit by a Licensing Sub-
Committee late at night to licensed premises and nearby resident properties 
accompanied by the police and/or fire service considering issues privy to that time of  
night e.g. noise or anti-social behaviour allegedly constituting public nuisance. Those 
circumstances cannot be replicated at other hours. Likewise a site visit of the 
Planning Panel at which highway or other experts are providing advice might not be 
capable of being replicated. However a site visit simply looking at the topography of 
the area might be capable of being replicated by an additional site visit with officers. 
Each case depends on its own circumstances but members, if they are unable to 
attend a site visit, must be prepared, if so advised, not to participate in the full 
hearing before the Committee.

3. Members should ensure that they sign the respective site visit register of attendance 
and committee meeting register of attendance. Members are reminded that 
attendance figures are a matter of public record. 

Page 19



4. Members willing to be appointed to the Committees must appreciate that the task 
can be demanding and that there can be, particularly in respect of the Planning 
Panel, a large number of meetings to attend. Members who feel that they may have 
difficulty in attending meetings regularly should, if they are a member of a political 
group, discuss the matter with their Group Leader. If independent they can raise the 
issue with the Democratic Services Manager. After consideration of the matter this 
might lead to the Group Leader perhaps proposing to Council that the member is 
replaced by another member from the same group either temporarily or on a 
permanent basis or if an independent member s/he proposing that another 
independent member replaces him or her. If there is continued absence (more than 
three site visits or meetings in a row) without any discussion by the absent member 
with the relevant Leader or with the Democratic Services Manager then  the 
Democratic Services Manager will raise the issue with the member and if applicable, 
his/her Group Leader to try and and resolve the matter. If there is no acceptable 
reason for, or resolution to, the continuing absence then the Monitoring Officer may 
refer the matter to the Standards and Ethics Committee for consideration who may, 
after hearing from the member, make a recommendation to Council about 
replacement. 

B.  TRAINING 

Training is a vital part of being a member of this Council and its committees and all 
members are expected to be proficient in carrying out his/her duties. In respect of the  
Committees it is essential that members are adequately informed to make decisions. 

1. Members must attend any organised mandatory training before they are allowed to 
take part in any meeting. This will be organised within three months of a member 
taking office on the Committee. . If a member cannot attend the organised training 
then officers will endeavour to arrange alternative training but this cannot be 
guaranteed.

2. Members must also attend any other relevant training that is organised specifically 
for Committee members. This is likely to consist of a minimum of 3 hours` training 
per calendar year and be by way of refresher and updating courses. 

3. In respect of the Planning Panel members must attend the annual Planning Panel 
Quality Review which forms part of their mandatory training.

C.  EXPECTATIONS 

1. Members must be familiar with relevant changes to legislation, government 
guidance and Council policies relating to the relevant Committee’s functions. It is a 
members’ personal responsibility to ensure that they are familiar with such 
documents. In respect of planning this will include the Council`s adopted Local Plan 

Page 20



policies and also Government guidance as set out in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. In respect of licensing it will include the Government guidance issued for 
Licensing Act and Gambling Act functions and the Council’s adopted statements of 
licensing policies for such functions. 

2. Members will be provided with a copy of these documents as part of their 
mandatory training. It is essential that members are familiar with the context of 
those documents as Officers’ reports included on the agenda for each meeting will 
only list the policies relevant to any particular case but will not provide full details of 
their content. 

3. Members must read the reports included on the agenda before attending a 
Committee meeting. The relevant application files are available to view on request. 
Members should refer any questions or queries they may have with regards to any 
report included on the agenda to officers before the meeting so far as is practical. 
There is significant media interest in these Committee and members should note 
that any comments or questions they raise at the Committees can legitimately be 
reported by the media. 

4. The onus is on members to ensure that they have all the information that they 
require in order to make an informed decision on any particular application before 
the Committees.

  

D.  DECISION MAKING 

Planning Panel

Members must recognise that legislation requires that where the Development Plan is 
relevant, decisions should be taken in accordance with it unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

1. Applications will be reported to the Planning Panel in accordance with the Scheme of 
Delegation as set out in the Council`s Constitution. 

2. If any member specifically wants an application to be reported to the Planning Panel 
for consideration then they should set out their reason for the request either via an 
email or in writing to the Planning Development Manager within 21 days of the 
application appearing on the Weekly List of Planning Applications received in 
accordance with the Call In Procedure as set out in the Council`s Constitution. 

3. When the Panel is minded to refuse or approve a planning application contrary to 
Planning Officer recommendation, a final decision shall be deferred until the 
following meeting to allow officers the opportunity to fully consider the reasons put 
forward. If members miss the initial Planning Panel meeting then they must listen to 
a recording of that meeting and sign a declaration that they have listened fully to the 
recording to enable them to vote at the following meeting as the debate will not be 
repeated. If members have not signed the declaration then they cannot take part in 

Page 21



any debate or vote on that particular application. This is to avoid the risk of an 
absent member making a decision when not in possession of all of the evidence 
whether it be through a site visit or hearing before the Planning Panel.

4. If Members wish to make a decision contrary to the Planning Officer`s 
recommendation then they must be able to provide clear and convincing reasons 
and should be prepared to explain in full their reasons for not agreeing with the 
Officer recommendation at the Planning Panel meeting. Members will be supported 
through this role by, insofar as is appropriate, independent consultants or other 
advisers.

5. Members must be prepared if necessary to represent the Council at any appeal on 
decisions taken against an Officer recommendation. This is likely to be at an inquiry 
held by the Secretary of State/Planning Inspectorate. Members will again be 
supported through this role.

Licensing Committee/Sub-Committees

1. Applications will be reported to the Licensing Committee in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation as set out in the Council`s Constitution and in the relevant 
statutory hearings regulations for Licensing Act and Gambling Act matters.

2. The statutory hearing regulations set out a detailed procedure which will be 
followed in respect of applications under the Licensing and Gambling Acts and 
officers will ensure that these are followed. Taxi applications have their own 
procedure and officers will ensure that procedures are followed.

3. Members must be prepared if necessary to represent the Council at any appeal on 
decisions taken by the Committee/Sub-Committee. This is likely to be restricted to 
the chairman of such and likely to be within the Magistrates’ / Crown Courts. 
Members will be supported through this role.

E.  COMMUNICATIONS 

Members of the Committees should refrain from making any personal comments on 
any decision before or after the meeting to ensure the integrity of the decision 
making process. This includes in person, in the press and on social media. Any 
comments made by Members’ which bring the Council into disrepute will be dealt 
with as a breach under the Council`s Code of Conduct policy. 

F.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

1. Members shall follow the guidance set out in the Council`s Constitution in deciding 
whether they have any personal and/or pecuniary interest in respect of a particular 

Page 22



application that they are involved in deciding. If they declare a pecuniary interest 
they cannot participate in the discussion on this item and must leave the meeting 
until such time as they are asked to return. Members should arrive at the meeting 
with a clearly defined list of interests they intend to declare. Advice can be sought 
prior to the meeting on whether an issue needs to be declared. 

2.  Members must remain impartial and be able to make decisions without any pre- 
determination or bias. This is wider than pecuniary interests. It can mean that a 
member should not participate in decision making if h/she is a friend of an applicant 
or of an objector. The test is whether participating can give the appearance of bias to 
a reasonable observer. Further advice can be sought from officers prior to a meeting. 
In respect of Licensing Sub-Committee applications, members are asked to discuss 
this matter with the Solicitor prior to the date of the hearing if they know the 
applicant or an objector to an application. As stated above Sub-Committees run with 
only three members by law (no more, no less) and the prior identification of an 
interest or close relationship will allow another member from the Licensing 
Committee to step in.

Date approved and effective from [ ] 2019

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL – PLANNING PANEL

PROTOCOL FOR SITE VISITS

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Members of the Planning Panel may wish to visit the site of a planning application 

they will be determining so that they have a better understanding of the effects an 

application may have on an area.

1.2 Planning Panel members are sometimes required to inspect a site to gain a greater 

understanding of the impact of the proposed scheme and the site’s location, physical 

characteristics and relationship to neighbouring properties or land use. This helps 

them when making a formal decision on a planning application. This protocol sets 

out the normal practice for the arrangement and conduct of formal site visits by the 

Planning Panel.

2.  REQUESTS FOR SITE VISITS

A site inspection will result from any one of the following:

(a) The Planning and Place Manager or, in his absence, the Chief Executive, 

requires one in the interests of proper decision making; or

(b) The Planning Panel calls for a site visit.

3.  CONDUCT OF SITE VISITS

Purpose

3.1 Site visits are solely for the purpose of viewing the site, to understand its location 

and the immediate environment to enable the development proposal to put into 

context, and, to enable Planning Panel to discuss the facts of the application.

Timing

3.2 Site visits will normally be held on the morning of a Planning Panel meeting at a time 

arranged by the Planning and Place Manager in consultation with the Chair of the 

Panel. For large scale developments the Planning and Places Manager will liaise with 

Page 25



all Panel members to find a mutually convenient date and time to ensure that all 

members are able to attend the site visit.

Lead

3.3 Site visits will be led by the Planning and Place Manager and/or the relevant case 

officer and the Chair. A summary of the protocol will be read out at the beginning of 

the site visit.

Right of other elected representatives to attend a site visit

3.4  On occasion, officers of other authorities or statutory bodies may be invited (by the 

Planning and Place Manager to attend a site visit to clarify factual matters (for 

example Cumbria County Council as the local highway authority or Environment 

Agency).

3.5 Other elected representatives representing the area in which the application relates 

and being the county councillor(s) and representative of the relevant parish council 

together with the relevant borough ward councillor(s) will also be invited to attend.

3.6 Where other elected representatives have been invited to attend, the applicant 

and/or any agent will also be invited to attend the site visit. 

3.7 A copy of this protocol will be issued to all those invited to attend the site visit.

Procedure at a site visit

3.8 No decisions will be made at the site visit by the Panel and the Chair will make this 

clear at the beginning of the visit.

3.9 Officers will give a brief presentation on the site, the setting of the proposed 

development and the specific reasons why the Panel / officers requested a site 

inspection. They will also advise whether the applicant or objectors have requested 

that the Panel views the site from other locations and how that is to be dealt with.

3.10 Following the officer presentation the borough ward councillor(s) will be asked 

whether s/he or they has/have any points which they wish to be clarified. Ward 

councillors will refrain from debating or commenting on the planning merits or 

otherwise of the proposal. Ward councillors will, on making a request in accordance 

Page 26



with the adopted public speaking procedure, be permitted to make representations 

at the relevant meeting on the Planning Panel. 

3.11 Members of the Panel may ask officers questions about the application. If an officer 

is unable to answer the question the applicant may assist, through the Chair, by 

providing factual details about the proposal or if the question relates to the nature 

of, or history, of the site by the ward councillor(s).

3.12 The county councillor and parish council representatives and the applicant/agent 

(other than as permitted by paragraph 3.11) will not, as a rule, be permitted to speak 

at the site visit. Where comment is made by one (a representative or the 

applicant/agent outside the scope permitted by paragraph 3.11) the other will be 

given an opportunity to respond if necessary. The site visit is aimed at assisting those 

councillor as representatives of the area, with understanding the application. Their 

right to speak, along with that of the applicant, about the application, is reserved to 

the Planning Panel meeting as an objector or supporter of the application in 

accordance with the adopted public speaking procedure and upon request to so 

speak. 

3.13 If members require further information or clarification of any aspect of the 

development the officers attending the site visit will be asked to ensure that such 

information is available by the time the application is considered by members at the 

relevant Planning Panel meeting.

3.14 The Chair will seek confirmation that members are satisfied they have seen 

everything they need to make a decision and will draw the site inspection to a close. 

No indication of the views of members or the likely outcome of the Planning Panel’s 

deliberations on the application will be given. To do so might imply that a member’s 

mind is already made up.

3.15 Members of the Panel should politely avoid engaging in private conversations with 

applicants, agents or the other elected representatives as this can give the wrong 

impression to others present or anyone observing the site visit.

3.16 At no point during the site visit will debate or comment on the planning merits or 

otherwise of the proposal be permitted, as the proper time for such debate / 

comment is at the relevant meeting of the Planning Panel.

Page 27



3.17 The Council is under no obligation to hold a site visit and the right of any person to 

speak is at the Chair’s discretion. There is no right to enter onto private land without 

the permission of the landowner. Where appropriate, officers will obtain permission 

from the landowner for those invited to attend the site visit to enter the land. If 

permission is not given to members and officers and other representatives to enter, 

the site will be viewed from the public highway. Parish and county councillors 

attending a site visit are expected to have their own insurance in place covering their 

attendance at such site visits as this Council’s insurance policy will not extend to 

them.

3.18 If a site visit becomes disorganised the Chair may withdraw Panel members at any 

time.

Recording of site visit

3.19 For the purposes of factual record, attendance at a site visit will be recorded by the 

lead officer including the locations visited.

3.20 As the purpose of the visit is not to debate but simply to establish facts about the 

site and its surroundings, no formal notes of a site visit will usually be recorded other 

than the attendance and locations visited as noted above. 

4. ABSENT MEMBERS

4.1 All members of the Planning Panel should use best endeavours to attend a site visit.

4.2 It is inevitable that absences will occur. Attention is drawn to the members’ protocol 

on planning and licensing matters (part A: Attendance) which deals with how such 

absence should be dealt with. The requirements on failure to attend more than 

three consecutive meetings together with the requirement to ‘catch up’ apply to site 

visits in the same manner as they apply to meetings.

4.3 In respect of ‘catching up’ a member who cannot attend a site visit should seek 

advice from the Planning and Place Manager well in advance of the meeting to 

determine how best that may be achieved. This will depend on the nature of the 

development, the particular geography of the area and whether expert advice (e.g. 

highways / Environment Agency) is to be received at the site visit. If a member is 

Page 28



unable to ‘catch-up’ s/he must be guided by the said Manager and in the right 

circumstances be prepared not to participate in the actual hearing of the application.

[Date approved and effective from: ]

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Task and Finish Group

REPORT FROM: Accessible Information Policy Review Task and 
Finish Group

LEAD MEMEBER: Cllr Andy Pratt
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee? 
The Accessible Information Policy Task and Finish Group have finished their 
work and present their recommendations for the Committee to consider.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to:

(a) Approve the changes to the Accessible Information Policy and 
forward to the Executive for approval.

1.0 OVERVIEW

1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee created an Accessible 
Information Policy Task and Finish group to ensure that information 
that is provided by Copeland Borough Council is accessible to 
everyone.

1.2 The Accessible Information Policy Review Task and Finish Group 
comprised of Councilor Andy Pratt as Chair and Councilor Gwyneth 
Everett. The Group met once and have now completed their work.

1.3 The Group originally drafted the policy with input from departments 
of Copeland Borough Council, other Local Authorities, the Royal 
National Institute of Blind People (RNIB) and the Copeland Disability 
Forum (CDF). The Accessible Information Policy was accepted by Full 
Council on 19th February 2019

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



1.4 The CDF expressed concern in July 2019 that its comments were not 
taken into account when the final policy was created. In light of this, 
the decision was taken to review the policy in October 2019.

2 REVIEW

2.1 The Task and Finish Group met with the CDF to address its concerns. 
Its concerns centered on the branding guidelines, specifically the size 
and font used by the Council, and the compatibility of accessibility 
software with the council website.

2.2 The Group asked that when the Copeland Borough Council Corporate 
Branding Guidelines are reviewed in the future that the Accessible 
Information Policy be taken into account to ensure that it is 
accessible to all Copeland residents.

2.3 The Group agreed to amend the Accessible Information Policy so that 
the font size of documents that are issued for the public should be 
point 14, where possible, as recommended by the RNIB.

2.4 Copeland Disability Forum’s concerns around accessibility of the 
Copeland Council website were centred on being able to use specific 
software that can read aloud documents. The problem is caused by 
the particular software not being compatible with PDF documents so 
the RNIB wanted all documents to be provided on the website in 
both PDF and Microsoft Word formats. The Senior Communications 
Officer advised that this would not be possible it is not appropriate 
for some documents held on our website to be available to the public 
in an editable format e.g a Microsoft Word document. Documents 
are also produced using a range of software that is not compatible 
with Microsoft Word and therefore some documents cannot be 
produced in this format.

3.0 CONCLUSION

3.1 Copeland Borough Council has a responsibility under the Equality Act 
2010 to ensure that it meets the accessibility needs of all its 

Page 32



residents. The Task and Finish Group believe that the amendments to 
the Accessible Information Policy help to achieve this.

3.2 The Accessible Information Task and Finish Group would like to thank 
the Copeland Disability Forum for their assistance and diligence in 
ensuring that Copeland Borough Council is accessible to all.

4.0 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

4.1 Legal/Monitoring Officer Comments: The Equality Act 2010 places a 
legal obligation on public authorities including the Council, to 
promote equality, consider the needs of all individuals in our day-to-
day work and to publish data in a manner that is reasonably 
accessible to the public. Accessibility includes making documents 
readable and understandable and this policy assists that task.

4.2 Section 151 Officer Comments: There are no financial issues arising 
from this report.

List of Appendices

Appendix A – Accessible Information Policy

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Accessible Information Policy

Version: 0.6
Policy Date: March 2019

Page 35



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 2 of 13

2
Document Control 

Organisation Copeland Borough Council
Title Accessible Information Policy
Version 0.6
Author James Young, Scrutiny Officer
Filename Accessible Information Policy v0.5
Owner Andrew Clarke, Communications and Engagement 

Officer
Subject Accessible Information
Protective Marking None
Review Date March 2021

Revision History

Version 
Reviewed

Date 
Reviewed

Reviewed By Description of Revision

v0.2 15/01/19 Policy Officer Added references
v0.3 17/01/19 Data Protection 

Officer
Added content in relation to 
Copeland Borough Council Privacy 
Notice

v0.4 30/01/19 Accessible 
Information Policy 
Task and Finish 
Group

Changed colours of font to make 
the policy more accessible and 
update the contributor list.

v0.6 22/10/19 Accessible 
Information Review 
Policy Task and 
Finish Group

Stated that Copeland will use font 
size point 14 in public facing 
documents.

Page 36



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 3 of 13

3
Document Approval 

Version Approved By Date
v0.2 Communication 

Department
10/01/19

v0.2 Policy Officer 15/01/19
v0.3 Governance & Data 

Protection
17/01/19

v0.3 Customer Services 
Department

23/01/19

v0.4 Accessible Information 
Policy Task and Finish 
Group

30/01/19

v0.5 Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

08/02/19

v0.5 Full Council 19/02/19
v0.6 Accessible Information 

Policy Review Task and 
Finish Group

08/11/19

v0.6 Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

v0.6 Executive

Page 37



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 4 of 13

4
Document Distribution

This policy is to be distributed to all staff and elected members of Copeland 
Borough Council and placed on the Council’s Intranet Site. A copy must also be 
provided to contractors and 3rd parties undertaking work on Copeland Borough 
Council premises.  

Contributors

Source Document

Frome Town 
Council

Accessibility Policy

East 
Dunbartonshire 
Council

Accessible Information Policy 2016-19

Copeland Borough 
Council

Accessible Information Task and Finish Group

Copeland Disability 
Forum

Co-optee on to Accessible Information Policy Task and 
Finish Group 

Royal National 
Institute of Blind 
People (RNIB)

Co-optee on to Accessible Information Policy Task and 
Finish Group

Page 38



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 5 of 13

5
Contents

Accessible Information Policy .........................................................................1
Policy Date: December 2018 .....................................................................1
Document Control .........................................................................................2

Revision History..........................................................................................2
Document Approval ....................................................................................3
Document Distribution................................................................................4
Contributors ...............................................................................................4

Contents .......................................................................................................5
Purpose.........................................................................................................6
Policy Benefits ...............................................................................................6
Introduction ..................................................................................................7
Scope ............................................................................................................7
Definitions.....................................................................................................7
Plain Language...............................................................................................7
Roles and Responsibilities ..............................................................................9
Policy Details including Procedures .................................................................9
Written Information ......................................................................................9
Verbal Information ......................................................................................11
Alternative Formats .....................................................................................12
Monitoring of Policy Adherence ...................................................................12
References ..................................................................................................13

Page 39

https://copelandbc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jyoung_copeland_gov_uk/Documents/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Task%20&%20Finish%20Groups/Accessible%20Information%20Policy/Accessible%20Information%20Policy%20v0.2.doc#_Toc534380329


FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 6 of 13

6
Purpose

The purpose of the Policy is to set out what all customers, including members of 
the public, employees, prospective employees, elected members and partner 
organisations, can expect from information provided by Copeland Borough 
Council (the Council) and likewise what is expected of Council officers in their 
provision of information. This Policy provides an overall framework for recipients 
and providers of information. It ensures that printed, electronic, face-to-face and 
telephone information is available:

 To all customers in a manner that meets their needs
 On request
 Without delay
 Via translator or interpreter if required
 In an alternative format if required

Policy Benefits 

The aims of this Policy are to reaffirm the commitment of the Council to provide 
information in an accessible manner, to set out the range of information 
provision methods and format that anyone can expect to receive from the 
Council and to provide clear information for anyone seeking to access 
information from the Council.

The intended outcome of this Policy is that all members of the public, Council 
employees, Elected Members and colleagues in partner organisations have more 
equality of opportunity when communicating with, or being in receipt of, 
communication from Copeland Borough Council.

It is also intended that this Policy makes the process of creating accessible 
services and information straightforward and embedded further in Council 
business.

This policy provides an overall framework for accessible information however it 
also recognises that some Council Services will require a more robust approach. 
Where this is the case, the Service should contact the Communications Team.

Page 40



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 7 of 13

7
Introduction

The Council is obliged to make information accessible to everyone; not only to 
comply with legal duties but because it is essential to its vision to achieve the 
best with the people of Copeland. 

The Equality Act (2010) consolidates all previous forms of equality legislation and 
strengthens the requirement to eliminate direct and indirect discrimination, 
advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. It replaces previous 
provisions in the Race Relations Act (2000) and the Disability Discriminations Act 
(2005). The Equality Act (2010) shifts the focus for listed public bodies from 
responding reactively to responding proactively to unequal experiences of public 
service. This includes accessing information in any form. Failure to provide this in 
an appropriate format for an individual or a group of people is likely to lead to 
discrimination and would be unlawful under equality legislation.

The Human Rights Act (1998) brings most of the fundamental rights and 
freedoms contained in the European Convention on Human Rights directly into 
UK law. This includes, but is not exclusive to, the right to respect for private and 
family life, for home and correspondence and the right to education. Article 14 of 
the Human Rights Act (1998) prohibits discrimination in the enjoyment of all 
rights and freedoms set out in the Convention on any ground, such as language, 
disability or age.  

Scope 

This Policy provides details on the range of accessible information methods and 
formats that customers can expect to receive from Copeland Borough Council. 
The Policy includes information that is provided by the Council. 

Definitions

Plain Language

In order to make our documents clear and easy to read the Council will apply the 
principles of the Plain English Campaign. The Communications Team can advise 
all Council Services on the use of Plain English in their documents and written 

Page 41



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 8 of 13

8
communications. The Plain English Campaign define Plain English as: 'something 
that the intended audience can read, understand and act upon the first time they 
read it'.  

The Plain English Campaign define ‘plain language’ as:

 Using short words that are commonly used
 Using ‘you’ and ‘we’
 Not being afraid to give instructions
 Using positive language
 Avoiding jargon
 Explaining what acronyms stand for, such as Citizen’s Advice Bureau 

instead of CAB
 Using words rather than abbreviations or symbols, for example, ‘care 

of’ instead of ‘c/o’
 Keeping sentences and paragraphs short (a maximum of 15-20 word 

sentences)
 Using heading to break up writing
 Explaining any technical terms you have to use
 Avoiding long-winded sentences
 Using the active voice rather than the passive voice. For example, ‘I will 

eat cakes’ rather than ‘cakes will be eaten by me’.
 Choosing a photograph, diagram, or illustration to replace long written 

descriptions
 Only using basic punctuation . , ; : / ( )
 Avoiding phrases such as ‘inter alia’ and ‘raison d’être’ where an English 

equivalent can be used.
 More information can be found at www.plainenglish.co.uk/free-

guides.html

Page 42

http://www.plainenglish.co.uk/free-guides.html
http://www.plainenglish.co.uk/free-guides.html


FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 9 of 13

9
Roles and Responsibilities

Copeland Borough Council employees and elected members who produce or 
distribute information on behalf of the Council have a duty to ensure that this 
information is accessible and available in a variety of formats on request.

This includes information given in writing or verbally and on the Council website.

Policy Details including Procedures

Written Information

Type Size:

The Royal National Institute for the Blind (RNIB) and Action for Blind People 
recommend font point 14 as a minimum. Copeland Borough Council will use font 
point 14 when possible.

Type Weight:

Medium or bold weight fonts are more accessible than light ones.

Typeface:

The Council has agreed that Calibri minimum font size 14 will be used for day to 
day use.

Simulated handwriting and elaborate typefaces are difficult to read and should not 
be used.

Contrast:

Aim for a clear colour contrast. Black text on a white background and strong blue 
text on a yellow background provides the best contrast. Avoid using ink which is 
a darker tone of the same colour as the paper. People with colour blindness may 
have problems distinguishing reds or greens.

Avoid using glossy paper because the glare makes it difficult to read. Choose 
uncoated paper or matt. Thin paper should not be used when printing your 

Page 43



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 10 of 13

10
document on both sides. If the text is showing through from the reverse side, 
then the paper is too thin.

Type Styles:

Avoid sentences using CAPITAL LETTERS, italics or underlined text as these are 
generally harder to read. Bold is more accessible but only in small amounts.

Page Layout and Word Spacing:

To make a document accessible:

 Keep the same space between each word.
 Do not condense or s t r e t c h words.
 Try not to write more than 60-70 letters per line.
 Do not split words at the end of lines.
 Align text to the left margin so it is easy to find the start and finish of 

each line.
 Avoid justified text as it creates uneven spacing between words.
 Break information down into sections with titles and subtitles.

Navigational Aids:

It is good practice to use numbered headings and paragraphs in long documents, 
also to use a contents list or index to guide readers to relevant sections and 
pages. It is also helpful to place clear page numbers in the same position on each 
page and leaving a space between paragraphs makes reading easier.

Illustrations:

Where possible try not to write letters over pictures.

Watermarks:

Watermarks can be confusing to a reader although they are a useful tool 
especially for DRAFT or CONFIDENTIAL documents. An alternate option to state 
DRAFT or CONFIDENTIAL in large bold print at the beginning of the document and 
on the top of each page.

Page 44



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 11 of 13

11
Large Print:

Large print documents must be made available on request. The RNIB defines 
large print as a minimum font size of Point 16. Action for Blind People 
recommend anything between Point 16 to Point 22. It is good practice to ask 
people what size they would like, as no single size suits everyone. With long 
documents it is a good idea to ask the person whether they want all or part of a 
document made available in large print. In some cases they may only want a 
summary. If a font size larger than 22 is requested then audio shall be provided.

Verbal Information

Access to Interpreters:

Interpreters are needed where a person finds that communicating in English is a 
barrier to getting the information, advice or service they need.

We have the following responsibilities regarding interpreters:

 To provide them on request.
 To only use them with a person’s consent.

Due to the low level of request for this service, the Council does not have direct 
access to interpreters. However, if required, we will endeavour to respond within 
a reasonable timescale to find a suitable person who can provide an adequate 
level of interpretation.

Page 45



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 12 of 13

12
Alternative Formats

Braille and moon are tactile (touch-based) communication formats used by some 
people who are blind, deafblind or have visual loss. Braille is used far more 
commonly than moon, however, staff should take care to ask an individual who is 
blind to self-identify their own preferred format and avoid assuming that it will 
be braille. With the advent of increasingly sophisticated ‘screenreaders’ and 
other assistive technologies, many people who are blind now identify email / 
online information as their preferred information format. This increases the 
importance of ensuring that documents are created accessibly.

Although only a relatively small number of people who are blind now identify 
braille as their preferred format, braille remains an important communication 
format for many people who are blind, particularly older people, and is the only 
communication format for some people who are deafblind.

Transcription of documents, information or online content into braille should be 
undertaken by an organisation specialist in production of this format. Braille 
documents should be handled and stored with care, so as not to damage the 
transcription by creating unwanted indents or creases. Braille documents should 
be protected from damage when being posted with protective packaging and a 
clear ‘do not bend’ instruction.

Monitoring of Policy Adherence

This policy will be reviewed at a minimum of every two years to incorporate any 
changes in legislation or guidance from the Equalities Act (2010).

Any information or publications that are sent out to the public must be sent to 
the Communications Department to ensure that they adhere to this policy.

Copeland Borough Council is committed to protecting the privacy of the public 
when using its services. The Copeland Borough Council Privacy Notice explains how 
information about the public is protected and kept secure. This policy can be found 
at 
https://www.copeland.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/privacy_notice1.pdf

Page 46



FINAL Accessible Information Policyv0.5.doc - 01/03/19

Page 13 of 13

13
References

Equality Act 2010
Human Rights Act 1998
Copeland Borough Council Social Inclusion Policy
Copeland Borough Council Communications Strategy
Copeland Borough Council and Your Privacy
Plain English Campaign

Other sources of advice and support:
RNIB
Cumbria Deaf Association
Action for Blind People
West Cumbria Society for the Blind

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21/11/19

Internal Audit Review

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Cllr David Moore
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE?
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the latest budget 
monitoring report to the Executive; included as Appendix A.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the latest budget monitoring report to the Executive attached.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive the quarterly budget 
monitoring reports to the Executive for consideration. 

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. The Committee is asked to note the report.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from the report.

3.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are:

3.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the attached 
report.

3.4. EIA Comments: N/A

3.5. Policy Framework: N/A

3.6. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Latest quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive.

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

2019/20 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report – Q2 (September 2019)

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Mike Starkie
Steven Brown, Chief Finance Officer

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Chief Finance Officer

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?
These proposals ensure the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs to 
enable the continued delivery of services to Copeland residents. 

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 2 (Q1 - to the end of September 
2019) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for 
the 2019/20 financial year. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
1. Note the 2019/20 revenue forecast outturn net overspend of £352k, (See Paragraph 
1.3 and Appendix A); 

2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances (See Paragraph 1.5); 

3. Note the forecast capital outturn for 2019/20 (See Paragraph 1.14).

4. INTRODUCTION

Revenue Budget

4.1. This report contains information on the Forecast Outturn position on spending 
against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2019/20. Following discussions with 
Budget Managers detailed forecasts have been provided. The Budget will be 
updated to reflect the new CLT structure at Q3.

4.2. The Net Revenue Budget agreed by Council on 5th February 2019 for 2019/20 
was £8,798k; this includes a transfer from the General Fund of £227k. The table 
overleaf summarises the forecast outturn position for Q2 against the Council’s 
Revenue Budget for 2019/20.

Page 50



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

Directorate £’000 Budget Net Exp’ Forecast Q2 
Variance

Q1 
Variance

Chief Executive 4,110 2,508 4,085 (125) 143
Operations 4,688 4,557 5,665 977 690
Subtotal 8,798 7,065 9,750 852 833
Sources of Finance (8,798) (4,399) (9,298) (500) (500)
Grand Total 0 2,666 452 352 333

4.3. The forecast outturn for the Council shows a net overspend of £352k which is 
largely unchanged from Q1. The overspend is due to an overspend against the 
directorate budgets of £852k offset by additional Sources of Finance of (£500k). 

4.4. The overspend against the directorate budgets is across a number of services, 
significant variances are summarised in the following paragraphs, with Appendix 
A showing all service areas within each directorate. There are no significant 
variances within the Chief Executives Directorate, the significant variances within 
the Operations Directorate are set out below:

Operations Directorate

Directorate / Service £’000 Variance
Beacon Museum 181
Business Support (ICT) 261
Park & Open Spaces 161
Refuse & Recycling 412
Revenues & Benefits 110
Other (Net Total) (148)
Total 690

4.5. The significant variances are summarised below:

i. Beacon Museum – The forecast overspend of £181k is largely due to a 
shortfall in income of £145k (Sales £28k, Room Hire £37k and Admissions 
£80k) and an overspend on exhibition purchases of £30k. The Beacon 
reserve was fully utilised in 2018/19 and therefore the overspend will have 
to be met from the Council’s General Reserve. A range of marketing and 
activity and events are planned to mitigate this pressure and increase 
income opportunities.

ii. Business Support (ICT) – The forecast overspend of £261k relates to licenses 
of £136k and additional staffing of £114k. The additional staffing is due to 

Page 51



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

the cyber recovery work. The 2020/21 ICT base budget may need to be 
reviewed as part of the 2020/21 budget. 

iii. Park & Open Spaces – The main elements of the forecast overspend of 
£161k relate to higher than budgeted electricity costs for the Council’s 
street lighting of £31k; the service is seeking to reduce this cost by 
transferring lighting to other bodies where possible. Cemeteries income is 
forecast to be £52k lower than the budget of (£157k); in previous years this 
has been offset by higher than the budgeted Crematorium income of 
(£814k) but this is currently forecast on budget for the year. Finally, the 
General Landscaping budget is forecast to overspend by £39k due to 
staffing pressures. CLT agreed to invest in keeping seasonal staff during the 
winter months in advance of the new season to increase opportunities for 
obtaining additional work and new contracts.

iv. Refuse & Recycling – The base budget for 2019/20 was increased by £270k 
to meet the strong statutory demand for doorstep collections which 
required a new team and vehicle to cover the revised rounds. The forecast 
position for Q2 shows an overspend of £412k, the main factors are set out 
below:

- The recycling service is forecasting a shortfall in income of £193k 
due to lower than budgeted income from the sales of recyclates 
and lower than budgeted tonnes of recycling resulting in lower 
Recycling Credits income.

- Staffing costs across all waste services (Domestic, commercial & 
recycling) are forecast to overspend by £46k, the service states is 
partly due to additional staffing costs that is in part due to the 
additional overtime costs of delivering replacement bins.

- There is a £62k pressure in the car parks budget due to higher 
business rates (this will need to be built into the base budget for 
2020/21); and

- Budgeted income from penalty notices is (£80k), at Q2 there is a 
shortfall of £70k forecast. The budget income from penalty notices 
has been affected by the increased range of pop up car parks 
which in turn has reduced the number of vehicles staying longer in 
our car parks or overstaying.   The projected £70k loss to income is 
being tested to identify if this is a long term trend that needs to be 
reflects in the base budget.

v. The Revenues & Benefits service is forecast to overspend by £110k; this is 
largely due to lower than budgeted recovery of older overpaid benefit 

Page 52



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

debts. In year benefit overpayments have reduced significantly due to the 
increased accuracy in the team, this budget may need to be revised for 
2020/21.

4.6. There are a number of assumptions / risks underpinning the forecast position, 
these include:

 The Copeland Centre includes additional income which is unlikely to 
be realised this financial year, this is forecast to be met from the PFI 
reserve. 

 The forecast assumes external funding contributions for a number 
of projects; this will be reviewed as part of the Q3 report.

2019/20 Efficiency Plan

4.7. The 2019/20 Budget agreed by Council identified £591k of efficiencies required 
to balance the budget. The forecast position against these is set out in the table 
below:

Efficiencies £’000  Budget Forecast Variance
Fees & Charges (122) (122) 0
Members Allowances (52) (52) 0
Pensions fund savings from upfront payment in 
2017/18 (final year) (67) (67) 0

External funding (350) (250) 100
Total (591) (491) 100

4.8. There is an estimated shortfall of £100k meaning that 83% of the efficiency plan 
is forecast to be delivered.

Sources of Finance

4.9. Financing of the Council’s net Revenue budget of £8,798k is set out overleaf. In 
recent years business rates income has been much higher than budgeted, this is 
primarily due a prudent approach to setting the budget (particularly relating to 
business rates pooling income) but also due to the assumptions made about 
appeals. The 2019/20 budget is unlikely to result in significant movements to the 
business rates income levels providing there is no change in the appeals 
assumptions made regarding Sellafield. 

4.10. There is forecast to be additional funding of £500k from earmarked reserves 
following a review of the planned usage of reserves over the period of the 

Page 53



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

medium term financial strategy.

Sources of Finance £’000  Budget Outturn Variance
Council Tax Income (4,334) (4,334) 0
Business Rates Retained Income (2,789) (2,789) 0
Revenue Support Grant (39) (39) 0
New Homes Bonus (125) (125) 0
PFI Grant (837) (837) 0
Other Grants (447) (447) 0
Use of General Reserve (227) (227) 0
Earmarked Reserves 0 (500) (500)
Total Sources of Finance (8,798) (8,798) (500)

General Reserves

4.11. The General Fund Reserve as at the 1st April 2019 was £2,969k, the table below 
sets out the forecast changes to the General Fund to 31st March 2019:

£’000
Balance as at 1st April 2019 (based on the unaudited positon) (2,932)
Budgeted transfer to support 2019/20 budget 242
Forecast overspend for 2019/20 352
Balance as at 31st March 2019 (2,338)
Minimum level agreed by Council (Feb 2019) (2,000)

4.12. The forecast General Reserve balance is above the minimum level of £2m agreed 
by Council in February 2019.

Irrecoverable Debts

4.13. The Financial Regulations and Corporate Debt Recovery Policy set out the 
process and limitations for writing off irrecoverable debts. There are no debt 
write offs for consideration this period. 

Capital Budget

4.14. Council approved a Revised Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £8,961k at its 
meeting on 20th June 2019. Expenditure for Q2 is set out in the table overleaf:

Page 54



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

Project (and location where 
appropriate)

 Revised 
budget 

 Expenditure  Forecast 

Accommodation Strategy 
(Whitehaven)

              1,413 115 1,413

Investment in ICT Projects                   148 50 148
Millom Cemetery                        2 0 2
Pay & Display Stock (Borough wide)                        4 0 4
Whitehaven Cemetery Extension                   240 0 240
Bereavement Services (Distington)               1,457 298 1,457
Disabled Facilities Grants (Borough 
wide)

                  557 31 557

Town Centre Regeneration (Borough 
Wide)

                  886 80 886

Land Development (Borough Wide)               1,000 0 1,000
Coastal Programme                   509 0 509
Beacon Virtual Museum 
(Whitehaven)

                  100 3 100

IT Infrastructure                   950 0 950
Whitehaven Activity Centre               1,198 0 1,198
Cleator Moor Activity Centre                   247 0 247
St Bees Ramp                   250 0 250
Total               8,961 598 8,961

4.15. The capital programme will be reviewed in Q3 when more upto date information 
is available to provide a more accurate forecast of the year end positon.

Treasury Management

4.16. The Treasury Management function supports the overall objectives and priorities 
of the Council, by the use of effective treasury management techniques. The aim 
is to manage risks and ensure there are sufficient cash resources and long-term 
borrowings to finance the Council’s activities and capital investment programme 
whilst balancing this to the secondary objective of trying to minimise the costs of 
the net interest budget. 

4.17. Long term borrowing is £5m as at 30th September (£5m at 30th June) and 
investments are £45.23m as at 30th September. There is a net interest cost to the 
Council, this is due to interest on the loan being c7.5% and investment interest 
being around 0.75% included in the Council’s budget.  The budget has been 
rebased in 2019/20 and a balanced budget is forecast for 2019/20.

4.18. The Council undertook no new borrowing as at 30th September 2019 in 
accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy. It is expected that the 
Council will undertake no further long-term borrowing during 2019/20 in 

Page 55



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

accordance with the 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy. 

5. CONCLUSIONS

5.1. This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 2 (Q2 - to the end of 
September2019) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue and 
Capital Budgets for the 2019/20 financial year.

6. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

6.1. Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from the report.

6.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: The report sets out the forecast financial 
outturn for the financial year 2019/20.

6.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report

6.4. EIA Comments

6.5. Policy Framework

6.6. Other consultee comments, if any:

7. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

7.1. As set out in the report.

8. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS 
GOING TO BE  MANAGED?

8.1. This budget monitoring report is part of the budget monitoring cycle. 

8.2. The information will inform decision making by the Executive. 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A - Forecast Outturn by Service

Page 56



Appendix A – Quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive

Appendix A - 2019/20 Provisional Outturn by Service
  

Director Department / Service £'000   Budget Net Exp Forecast
Q2 

Variance
Q1 

Variance
Chief Executive Building Control 86 68 96 10 10

Chief Executive 202 178 358 57 64
Communications 78 94 79 2 2
Democratic Services 418 228 422 4 3
Development Control (36) (44) (34) 2 2
Elections 129 170 90 (38) 0
Environmental Health 469 246 500 32 (56)
Financial Services 879 362 872 (7) 16
Head of Governance & Commercial 273 112 246 (27) (21)
Internal Audit 119 62 94 (25) 13
Legal & Procurement Services 209 105 216 7 (7)
Nuclear 1 27 (38) (39) (12)
Property & Estates 1,109 782 1,008 (101) 130
Strategic Planning 174 117 175 1 1

Chief Executive Total 4,110 2,508 4,085 (125) 144
Executive Director Beacon Museum 191 79 372 181 0

Business Support (ICT) 794 816 1,056 261 269
Copeland Community Fund 0 75 0 0 8
Customer Services 322 163 321 (1) 3
Economic Development 218 (190) 93 (125) 4
Executive Director of Operations 139 (260) 142 3 57
Head of Corporate Resources 61 37 71 10 4
Human Resources 339 154 329 (10) (53)
Park & Open Spaces (45) 144 116 161 80
Refuse & Recycling 1,813 1,267 2,225 412 318
Revenues & Benefits 339 2,160 449 110 0
Strategic Housing 518 112 492 (26) 0

Executive Director - Operations Total 4,688 4,557 5,665 977 690
Grand Total 8,798 7,065 9,750 852 834

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Executive 041119

2019/20 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report – Q2 (September 2019)

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Mike Starkie
Steven Brown, Chief Finance Officer

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Chief Finance Officer

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?
These proposals ensure the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs to 
enable the continued delivery of services to Copeland residents. 

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 2 (Q1 - to the end of September 
2019) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for 
the 2019/20 financial year. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
1. Note the 2019/20 revenue forecast outturn net overspend of £352k, (See Paragraph 
1.3 and Appendix A); 

2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances (See Paragraph 1.5); 

3. Note the forecast capital outturn for 2019/20 (See Paragraph 1.14).

1. INTRODUCTION

Revenue Budget

1.1. This report contains information on the Forecast Outturn position on spending 
against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2019/20. Following discussions with 
Budget Managers detailed forecasts have been provided. The Budget will be 
updated to reflect the new CLT structure at Q3.

1.2. The Net Revenue Budget agreed by Council on 5th February 2019 for 2019/20 
was £8,798k; this includes a transfer from the General Fund of £227k. The table 
overleaf summarises the forecast outturn position for Q2 against the Council’s 
Revenue Budget for 2019/20.

Page 59



Directorate £’000 Budget Net Exp’ Forecast Q2 
Variance

Q1 
Variance

Chief Executive 4,110 2,508 4,085 (125) 143
Operations 4,688 4,557 5,665 977 690
Subtotal 8,798 7,065 9,750 852 833
Sources of Finance (8,798) (4,399) (9,298) (500) (500)
Grand Total 0 2,666 452 352 333

1.3. The forecast outturn for the Council shows a net overspend of £352k which is 
largely unchanged from Q1. The overspend is due to an overspend against the 
directorate budgets of £852k offset by additional Sources of Finance of (£500k). 

1.4. The overspend against the directorate budgets is across a number of services, 
significant variances are summarised in the following paragraphs, with Appendix 
A showing all service areas within each directorate. There are no significant 
variances within the Chief Executives Directorate, the significant variances within 
the Operations Directorate are set out below:

Operations Directorate

Directorate / Service £’000 Variance
Beacon Museum 181
Business Support (ICT) 261
Park & Open Spaces 161
Refuse & Recycling 412
Revenues & Benefits 110
Other (Net Total) (148)
Total 690

1.5. The significant variances are summarised below:

i. Beacon Museum – The forecast overspend of £181k is largely due to a 
shortfall in income of £145k (Sales £28k, Room Hire £37k and Admissions 
£80k) and an overspend on exhibition purchases of £30k. The Beacon 
reserve was fully utilised in 2018/19 and therefore the overspend will have 
to be met from the Council’s General Reserve. A range of marketing and 
activity and events are planned to mitigate this pressure and increase 
income opportunities.

ii. Business Support (ICT) – The forecast overspend of £261k relates to licenses 
of £136k and additional staffing of £114k. The additional staffing is due to 

Page 60



the cyber recovery work. The 2020/21 ICT base budget may need to be 
reviewed as part of the 2020/21 budget. 

iii. Park & Open Spaces – The main elements of the forecast overspend of 
£161k relate to higher than budgeted electricity costs for the Council’s 
street lighting of £31k; the service is seeking to reduce this cost by 
transferring lighting to other bodies where possible. Cemeteries income is 
forecast to be £52k lower than the budget of (£157k); in previous years this 
has been offset by higher than the budgeted Crematorium income of 
(£814k) but this is currently forecast on budget for the year. Finally, the 
General Landscaping budget is forecast to overspend by £39k due to 
staffing pressures. CLT agreed to invest in keeping seasonal staff during the 
winter months in advance of the new season to increase opportunities for 
obtaining additional work and new contracts.

iv. Refuse & Recycling – The base budget for 2019/20 was increased by £270k 
to meet the strong statutory demand for doorstep collections which 
required a new team and vehicle to cover the revised rounds. The forecast 
position for Q2 shows an overspend of £412k, the main factors are set out 
below:

- The recycling service is forecasting a shortfall in income of £193k 
due to lower than budgeted income from the sales of recyclates 
and lower than budgeted tonnes of recycling resulting in lower 
Recycling Credits income.

- Staffing costs across all waste services (Domestic, commercial & 
recycling) are forecast to overspend by £46k, the service states is 
partly due to additional staffing costs that is in part due to the 
additional overtime costs of delivering replacement bins.

- There is a £62k pressure in the car parks budget due to higher 
business rates (this will need to be built into the base budget for 
2020/21); and

- Budgeted income from penalty notices is (£80k), at Q2 there is a 
shortfall of £70k forecast. The budget income from penalty notices 
has been affected by the increased range of pop up car parks 
which in turn has reduced the number of vehicles staying longer in 
our car parks or overstaying.   The projected £70k loss to income is 
being tested to identify if this is a long term trend that needs to be 
reflects in the base budget.

v. The Revenues & Benefits service is forecast to overspend by £110k; this is 
largely due to lower than budgeted recovery of older overpaid benefit 

Page 61



debts. In year benefit overpayments have reduced significantly due to the 
increased accuracy in the team, this budget may need to be revised for 
2020/21.

1.6. There are a number of assumptions / risks underpinning the forecast position, 
these include:

 The Copeland Centre includes additional income which is unlikely to 
be realised this financial year, this is forecast to be met from the PFI 
reserve. 

 The forecast assumes external funding contributions for a number 
of projects; this will be reviewed as part of the Q3 report.

2019/20 Efficiency Plan

1.7. The 2019/20 Budget agreed by Council identified £591k of efficiencies required 
to balance the budget. The forecast position against these is set out in the table 
below:

Efficiencies £’000  Budget Forecast Variance
Fees & Charges (122) (122) 0
Members Allowances (52) (52) 0
Pensions fund savings from upfront payment in 
2017/18 (final year) (67) (67) 0

External funding (350) (250) 100
Total (591) (491) 100

1.8. There is an estimated shortfall of £100k meaning that 83% of the efficiency plan 
is forecast to be delivered.

Sources of Finance

1.9. Financing of the Council’s net Revenue budget of £8,798k is set out overleaf. In 
recent years business rates income has been much higher than budgeted, this is 
primarily due a prudent approach to setting the budget (particularly relating to 
business rates pooling income) but also due to the assumptions made about 
appeals. The 2019/20 budget is unlikely to result in significant movements to the 
business rates income levels providing there is no change in the appeals 
assumptions made regarding Sellafield. 

Page 62



1.10. There is forecast to be additional funding of £500k from earmarked reserves 
following a review of the planned usage of reserves over the period of the 
medium term financial strategy.

Sources of Finance £’000  Budget Outturn Variance
Council Tax Income (4,334) (4,334) 0
Business Rates Retained Income (2,789) (2,789) 0
Revenue Support Grant (39) (39) 0
New Homes Bonus (125) (125) 0
PFI Grant (837) (837) 0
Other Grants (447) (447) 0
Use of General Reserve (227) (227) 0
Earmarked Reserves 0 (500) (500)
Total Sources of Finance (8,798) (8,798) (500)

General Reserves

1.11. The General Fund Reserve as at the 1st April 2019 was £2,969k, the table below 
sets out the forecast changes to the General Fund to 31st March 2019:

£’000
Balance as at 1st April 2019 (based on the unaudited positon) (2,932)
Budgeted transfer to support 2019/20 budget 242
Forecast overspend for 2019/20 352
Balance as at 31st March 2019 (2,338)
Minimum level agreed by Council (Feb 2019) (2,000)

1.12. The forecast General Reserve balance is above the minimum level of £2m agreed 
by Council in February 2019.

Irrecoverable Debts

1.13. The Financial Regulations and Corporate Debt Recovery Policy set out the 
process and limitations for writing off irrecoverable debts. There are no debt 
write offs for consideration this period. 

Capital Budget

1.14. Council approved a Revised Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £8,961k at its 
meeting on 20th June 2019. Expenditure for Q2 is set out in the table overleaf:

Page 63



Project (and location where 
appropriate)

 Revised 
budget 

 Expenditure  Forecast 

Accommodation Strategy 
(Whitehaven)

              1,413 115 1,413

Investment in ICT Projects                   148 50 148
Millom Cemetery                        2 0 2
Pay & Display Stock (Borough wide)                        4 0 4
Whitehaven Cemetery Extension                   240 0 240
Bereavement Services (Distington)               1,457 298 1,457
Disabled Facilities Grants (Borough 
wide)

                  557 31 557

Town Centre Regeneration (Borough 
Wide)

                  886 80 886

Land Development (Borough Wide)               1,000 0 1,000
Coastal Programme                   509 0 509
Beacon Virtual Museum 
(Whitehaven)

                  100 3 100

IT Infrastructure                   950 0 950
Whitehaven Activity Centre               1,198 0 1,198
Cleator Moor Activity Centre                   247 0 247
St Bees Ramp                   250 0 250
Total               8,961 598 8,961

1.15. The capital programme will be reviewed in Q3 when more up-to-date 
information is available to provide a more accurate forecast of the year end 
positon.

Treasury Management

1.16. The Treasury Management function supports the overall objectives and priorities 
of the Council, by the use of effective treasury management techniques. The aim 
is to manage risks and ensure there are sufficient cash resources and long-term 
borrowings to finance the Council’s activities and capital investment programme 
whilst balancing this to the secondary objective of trying to minimise the costs of 
the net interest budget. 

1.17. Long term borrowing is £5m as at 30th September (£5m at 30th June) and 
investments are £45.23m as at 30th September. There is a net interest cost to the 
Council, this is due to interest on the loan being c7.5% and investment interest 
being around 0.75% included in the Council’s budget.  The budget has been 
rebased in 2019/20 and a balanced budget is forecast for 2019/20.

Page 64



1.18. The Council undertook no new borrowing as at 30th September 2019 in 
accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy. It is expected that the 
Council will undertake no further long-term borrowing during 2019/20 in 
accordance with the 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy. 

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 2 (Q2 - to the end of 
September2019) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue and 
Capital Budgets for the 2019/20 financial year.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from the report.

3.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: The report sets out the forecast financial 
outturn for the financial year 2019/20.

3.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report

4. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

4.1. As set out in the report.

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS 
GOING TO BE  MANAGED?

5.1. This budget monitoring report is part of the budget monitoring cycle. 

5.2. The information will inform decision making by the Executive. 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A - Forecast Outturn by Service

Page 65



Appendix A - 2019/20 Provisional Outturn by Service
  

Director Department / Service £'000   Budget Net Exp Forecast
Q2 

Variance
Q1 

Variance
Chief Executive Building Control 86 68 96 10 10

Chief Executive 202 178 358 57 64
Communications 78 94 79 2 2
Democratic Services 418 228 422 4 3
Development Control (36) (44) (34) 2 2
Elections 129 170 90 (38) 0
Environmental Health 469 246 500 32 (56)
Financial Services 879 362 872 (7) 16
Head of Governance & Commercial 273 112 246 (27) (21)
Internal Audit 119 62 94 (25) 13
Legal & Procurement Services 209 105 216 7 (7)
Nuclear 1 27 (38) (39) (12)
Property & Estates 1,109 782 1,008 (101) 130
Strategic Planning 174 117 175 1 1

Chief Executive Total 4,110 2,508 4,085 (125) 144
Executive Director Beacon Museum 191 79 372 181 0

Business Support (ICT) 794 816 1,056 261 269
Copeland Community Fund 0 75 0 0 8
Customer Services 322 163 321 (1) 3
Economic Development 218 (190) 93 (125) 4
Executive Director of Operations 139 (260) 142 3 57
Head of Corporate Resources 61 37 71 10 4
Human Resources 339 154 329 (10) (53)
Park & Open Spaces (45) 144 116 161 80
Refuse & Recycling 1,813 1,267 2,225 412 318
Revenues & Benefits 339 2,160 449 110 0
Strategic Housing 518 112 492 (26) 0

Executive Director - Operations Total 4,688 4,557 5,665 977 690
Grand Total 8,798 7,065 9,750 852 834

Page 66



OSC211119

1

Corporate Strategy 2016-2020 Performance Report – Quarter two of 2019-20

EXECUTIVE MEMBER:  Cllr David Moore

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services and 
Commercial Strategy

REPORT AUTHOR: Gillian Butterworth, Performance and Risk Management 
Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE? 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Executive in ensuring that the Council 
complies with its duties of Best Value and value for Money.  It also has a key role to play in 
promoting and monitoring good performance management throughout the Council.  

This report details progress against the Corporate Strategy 2016-2020 for Quarter two of 
2019-20

RECOMMENDATION:

a) Note performance against the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan and KPIs and any actions 
taken to improve compliance with targets. 

b) Make any recommendations for consideration by the Executive

1.        INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Council use a Delivery Plan and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to monitor 
progress and performance against the Corporate Strategy 2016-2020.  

1.2 This report summarises performance made against the Delivery Plan and the KPIs in 
Quarter two of 2019-20, it also and provides context and remedial actions where 
deliverables or targets have not been fully achieved.  

1.3 The appendices to the report provides a full account and analysis for all Key 
Deliverables and KPIs. 

 
2. PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE DURING QUARTER TWO OF 2019/20

2.1 The Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan 
The Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan identifies twenty one Key Deliverables that the 
Council aims to achieve in 2019/20.  Each Key Deliverable is broken down into 
smaller S.M.A.R.T sub-actions known as ‘Milestones’.

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



OSC211119

2

2.2 For Quarter two there were a combined 20 Milestones to be completed across the 
Key Deliverables, of which 18 were completed (90%).  Where milestones were not 
completed, the following context is offered,

 KD 2 – Pride of Place –Public Realms Scheme. Quarter two Milestone partially met.
The Milestone to be met was, ‘for all four public realm schemes to be agreed for 
Egremont, Cleator Moor, Millom and Whitehaven’. At the end of the quarter, 
detailed designs had been drawn up, however public realm work has paused in 
Whitehaven and Cleator Moor to fall in line with timelines against the Future High 
Streets Fund and Heritage Action Zone applications.  Schemes for Millom and 
Egremont continue to be drawn up as costed designs for further engagement with 
the Town Councils and localities.

 KD 7 – Digital Platforms. Milestone not met.
The Milestone to be met was, ‘for a complete website refresh’.  It was reported in 
Quarter one that the website homepage refresh had almost been completed by the 
supplier and would be live by end of Quarter two, however during Quarter two the 
supplier revealed that this will require some more effort on homepage layout. The 
ICT Manger is seeking to resolve and progress with Rohallion and a new ‘go live’ date 
is expected to be scheduled for the coming weeks.

2.3 Table 1 below shows the overall progress as a percentage for each Key Deliverable 
based on the number of milestones set and achieved for each individual deliverable.

Note: KD’s 9, 13 and 18 do not have milestones due until Quarters three or four
Table1

Key Deliverable Progress at 
end of Q2

KD 1 Pride of Place-Town Centre Regeneration Scheme 75%

KD 2 Pride of Place public – Public Realm schemes 33%

KD 3 High Street Fund 50%

KD 4 Economic Vision for Copeland 50%

Ambition 1
Town Center 
Regeneration

KD 5 Community Led Housing Schemes 50%

KD 6 Strategic Asset Management Plan 66%

KD 7 Digital Platforms 0%

KD 8 Commercial Infrastructure 75%
Ambition 2
Commercialisation

KD 9 Beacon 5 year Business Plan 0%

KD 10 SL Social Impact Plan 50%

KD 11 Beacon Portal for Learning 25%

KD 12 Work and Skills Programme 66%

KD 13 Enterprise Initiatives 0%

KD 14 Domestic Abuse Prevention Project 50%

Ambition 3
Skills, Employment 
and Social wellbeing

KD 15 Copeland Health and Wellbeing Priorities 50%

Page 68



OSC211119

3

Key Deliverable Progress at 
end of Q2

KD 16 Strategic Housing Offer 50%

KD 17 Work Force Development Plan 33%

KD 18 ICT Strategy 0%

KD 19 Sustainable Financial Strategy 33%

KD 20 Bereavement Services Expansion Programme 66%

Ambition 4
Strengthen the way 
we operate

KD 21 Accommodation Strategy 50%

2.4 Key Performance Indicators 
To quantify progress against the Corporate Strategy, the Council currently monitors 
twenty five Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).  

2.5 At the end of Quarter two, 79% of KPIs were on target (19 out of 24, where one KPI 
is reported annually and therefore not expected to meet a quarterly target).

2.6 Where comparisons were possible, 86% of KPIs performed as well as or better than 
same quarter in 2018/19 (19 out of 22 comparable KPIs).

Non-comparable KPIs are 2.1 which is annual and 3.2 and 3.9 which are new.

2.7 Table B shows ‘at a glance’ which KPIs met their quarterly targets. 

Corporately owned Performance Indicators Was quarterly 
target met?

KPI 2.1 Additional income generated through Commercial activity Annual

KPI 3.5 b_ Speed of processing - new CTR claims

KPI 3.1 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected

KPI 3.5 a_ Speed of processing - new HB claims

KPI 3.6 a_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims

KPI 3.6 b_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims

KPI 3.8 Homeless relief cases

KPI 3.9 Domestic Abuse Project

KPI 4.2 % Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale

KPI 5.1 Percentage of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 
weeks

KPI 5.2 % planning 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 5.3 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 5.4 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed

Page 69



OSC211119

4

Non- corporately owned Performance Indicator Was quarterly 
target met?

KPI 1.3 Number of new homes approved

KPI 1.4 Number of new homes built

KPI 3.2 Local people supported with employability and skills

KPI 1.5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT

KPI 1.1 Percentage of Council Tax collected

KPI 1.2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use

KPI 1.6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built

KPI 1.7 External funding for Economic Development Secured

KPI 4.1 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one

KPI 4.3 a_ % of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting  

KPI 4.3 b_ Percentage reduction in residual household waste

KPI 4.4b Percentage CTAX collected using DDeb payment method

2.8 For the 5 KPIs that did not meet target, the following context is offered,

 KPI 1.4 Number of new homes built.  There were 43 new homes built in Quarter two 
of 2019-20, although this is below the target for the quarter, it is greater than the 
number of homes built in the same quarter last year, which was 18.

 KPI 1.5 number of affordable homes built.  This KPI is dependent upon external 
agents or their actions.  54 affordable homes were approved in 2018/19 so it is 
expected that those will progress to being built over the next couple of years.

 KPI 3.2 Local people supported with employability and skills. 
Arrangements are now in place for a second three year programme through the 
Copeland Work and Skills Partnership, of which we are the lead.  It is anticipated that 
the target for this KPI will be met as the second programme gains momentum.

 KPI 3.8 Homeless Relief Cases.
Performance figures are impacted by the timeframe for housing association 
properties becoming available and ready to let. During Q2 there were a number of 
properties that took a very long time to be turned around and this reflected in our 
figures due to the way we monitor the PI.   Under occupancy rules also affect the 
types of homes that can be offered.  Committee are advised all homeless individuals 
are supported in temporary accommodation until a tenancy agreement has been 
signed.

Page 70



OSC211119

5

 KPI 5.2 Percentage of FOI requests resolved within timeframe.
The Data Protection Officer took up post in October.  During the majority of Quarter 
two, interim support for FOI responses were covered by exiting staff members in 
addition to their primary duties and responsibilities. 

2.9 Data and trend monitoring
The Council monitors five additional performance trends, as these have been 
identified as relevant to the ambitions of our Corporate Strategy.
It is to be noted that these outcomes are not within Council control, and therefore 
have no annual target set by us.

Data/trends to be monitored Q2  of 
19/20

Q1  of 
19/20

Q4  of 
18/19

Q3  of 
18/19

Q2  of 
18/19

Q1  of 
18/19

Number of empty business 
premises within the borough.

183 181 202 205 202 191

Number of new businesses within 
the borough. (New business 
registrations)

43 22 36 31 24 23

Number of repeat homelessness 
case in 2 years

13 4 4 6 4 5

Number of homelessness cases 
where Welfare Reform is a factor.

14 8 14 1 2 5

Number of Domestic Violence 
Incidents with a repeat victim.

231 119 125 152 189 145

3.0 CONCLUSIONS

3.1 The Quarter two out-turn position is,
 90% of Key Deliverables are on target for completion.
 79% of KPIs have met their target. 
  86% of comparable KPIs have improved or maintained performance when 

compared to the same quarter last year.
 Where progress or targets were not met, context and remedial actions have 

been offered either in the body of the report or as part of the appendices.

Page 71



OSC211119

6

4.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are:  
This report provides a progress update on key deliverables arising from the 
Corporate Strategy.  Any legal issues arising from any individual key deliverables will 
be dealt with as appropriate. 

4.2 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2019/20 Budget and Capital Plan 
underpins the 2016-2020 Corporate Strategy. 

4.3 EIA Comments: 
The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which performance is measured 
have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  Individual projects and partnership 
delivery against the Corporate Delivery Plan are subject to provide EIAs.

4.4 Policy Framework: 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set down in the Council’s 
Constitution. This report directly reports on the delivery of the Corporate Strategy 
and associated documents.

5.  APPENDICIES
Appendix A - Corporate Delivery Plan Report for Q2 of 2019/20

Appendix B - Key Performance Indicator Report for Q2 of 2019/20

Page 72



Appendix A

1

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Establish funding committed/ available going 
forward

Facelift grant process paused to ascertain available budget for 
potential re-use grants.

Q2 Agreed Final Year programme Final year programme agreed.
112 grants awarded and of those 87 completed at Sept 19.

Q3 Deliver agreed programme Last of buildings completing this financial year

KEY DELIVERABLE 1 
Pride of Place-Town Centre 
Regeneration Scheme

Q4 Annual review -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q2 Agreed Public Realm schemes for 4 towns

some 
rescheduling

Areas agreed, detailed designs being drawn up, although public 
realm work is paused in Whitehaven and Cleator Moor to fall in 
line with timelines against the High Streets Fund and Heritage 
Action Zone applications, while schemes for Millom and 
Egremont will continue to be drawn up as costed designs for 
further engagement with the Town Councils and localities.

Q4 Complete Cleator Moor public realm scheme -

KEY DELIVERABLE 2 
Pride of Place public – Public 
Realm schemes

Q4 Complete Whitehaven public realm scheme -

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Agreed Whitehaven Vision Following confirmation from MHCLG that our Future High 
Streets Fund Expression of Interest (EOI) was successful, we 
have been starting the process of developing our scheme to 
underpin the submission of a full business case for funding in 
the new year

Q2 Q2 – Agreed Town Centre priorities in readiness for 
funding applications

Overview of priorities in place, with testing against deliverability 
and business case underway

Q3 Q3 – Feedback on progress of funding applications -  

KEY DELIVERABLE 3 
High Street Funds

Q4 Preparation of delivery plans 2021 -  

Corporate Delivery Plan Report for Quarter 2 of 2019/20

P
age 73

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

2

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Review of existing evidence and drivers ARUP commissioned. Work commenced and phase 1, to review 
existing evidence and drivers, completed.

Q3 Socialisation with partners and approval - The stakeholder engagement programme is almost complete 
and an early draft is being taken to FOG in November.
 

Q3 Implementation framework agreed -

KEY DELIVERABLE 4 
Economic Vision for Copeland

Q4 Review of growth and economic programme -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Q1 - Identification of potential new projects identified key project for CLH is about bringing empty homes 
back into use and working group now working to explore options

Q2 Business Plans for new schemes to Advisory group. Business Plans for submitted and grants supported e.g. 
Distington and Ulpha.
The CLH Advisory Group exploring how we can bring empty 
homes into use under a community led model for local people 
with a need for affordable housing.  Our delivery partners ACT 
are researching the Initiative and will be working with CBC 
officers to produce an options appraisal, which will go back to 
the Advisory Group later this year

Q3 Q3 - Award funds and project milestones agreed – 
work with Homes England and partners to draw 
down funds

-  

KEY DELIVERABLE 5 
Community Led Housing 
Schemes

Q4 Advisory group oversee delivery against milestones -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Review of existing assets. The strategic assets reviewed within the full asset list.  

Q2 Whitehaven Sport Strategy and deliverables 
agreed.

Procurement exercise carried out and tender awarded for 
production of Sports Strategy and deliverables.

Q2 Strategic Asset Management Plan agreed. Agreed by Executive September 19 - referred to Full Council for 
adoption

Q3 Implementation of Asset management Action Plan Working to Asset Management Plan  

Q4 Castle Park Management Plan agreed -  

KEY DELIVERABLE 6 
Strategic Asset Management 
Plan

Asset Management Plan
Sports Centre Development 
Castle Park Management Plan
 

Q4 Completion of Sports Centre Development -  

P
age 74



Appendix A

3

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Complete website refresh

 
some 

rescheduling

CBC believed it to be a simple “flick the switch” to turn the new 
website on, however suppliers have revealed that this will 
require some more effort on homepage layout. Seeking to 
resolve and progress, with Rohallion notifying CBC of the 
new “go live” date in next week.
 
ICT Strategy approval and e-purchasing baseline activity have 
been postponed to Q3 due to priority focus or Q1 and Q2 being 
PSN health check, and implementation of the action plan in 
order to achieve compliance

Q3 Baseline for e-purchasing activities -  

Q3 ICT strategy approval -  

Q4 Identify and source e-purchasing options for 
services to provide digital access.

-  

KEY DELIVERABLE 7 Digital 
Platforms

Q4 Install and launce e-purchasing systems. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Formalisation of Commercial priorities 
Review current operational commercial activity with 
a view to extension and increased market share to 
generate additional revenue

Draft Commercial Strategy approved by CLT and Executive. 
Council has given approval for restructure to recruit a Head of 
Commercial Services position (Q2)

Q2 Assess opportunities for commercial investment 
and diversification in other trading and non-trading 
and commercial activates.

Commercial engagement group established with governance 
arrangements and structure in place. Inaugural meeting 
scheduled for Q3 for initial appraisal of commercial leads and 
opportunities.

Q2 Extract cost savings achieved through procurement 
and contract mgmt.

Ongoing monitoring and reporting now in place to capture cost 
savings made on renewal of contracts

KEY DELIVERABLE 8 
Commercial Infrastructure

Q4 Commercialisation of website and use of customer 
portal and CRM

-  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q2 Grant arrangements and Annual Programme 
Agreed

Annual Social Impact Plan grant received against agreed action 
plan for 19-20

KEY DELIVERABLE 10 
Sellafield Social Impact Plan

Q3 TOMS Framework in-place and adopted by the 
Council in relation to community benefits plans

- Work still progressing with SL.

P
age 75

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

4

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Education Programme for 2019/20 agreed and 
implemented

Learning programme has been set up to end December 2019.  
Jan to March 2020 will be arranged in winter term (Oct to Dec 
2019

Q2 Summer Programme Delivered  Summer 2019 Vikings exhibition Jorvik’s Discover the Vikings 
exhibition. Over 6500 people visited during the first six weeks of 
the exhibition

Q3 Virtual Museum Learning Initiative -  

KEY DELIVERABLE 11 
Beacon Portal for Learning

Q4 Development of 2020/21 programme. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Funding application for new Work and Skills 
Partnership Programme

Following the completion of the Copeland Work & Skills 
Partnership programme of activities (2016-2019), the last couple 
of months have been a transition period towards being ready for 
the next 3 years of programme supported through CCF and 
Sellafield Ltd.’s Social Impact programme

Q2 Design and implementation of new Work and Skills 
Programme

 The programme comprised of six work streams:  
 Supporting young people into apprenticeships 
 Sector development 
 An employability support fund
 Upskilling workers 
 Employer wage subsidies for unemployed adults 
 Bespoke support & pilot initiatives 

KEY DELIVERABLE 12 
Work and Skills Programme

Q4 Annual review. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 1 additional unit into use & deliver outreach services 
from new women’s center.

Additional unit now secured, totalling three units and Womens 
centre opened in July 2019

Q2 Improve networking and partnership holistic 
approach through women’s center

Sessions were held to identify appropriate sessions for partner 
agencies to maximise holistic approach for client. Manager has 
been recruited and is now in post and will raise the profile of the 
centre and improve the offer. 

Q3 Funding bid from any external resources available -  

KEY DELIVERABLE 14 
Domestic Abuse Prevention 
Project

Q4 Extend Project formally – dependent on above -  

P
age 76



Appendix A

5

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Q1 – Agreed plan for Copeland Health and 
Wellbeing Forum in response to Cumbria Public 
Health Strategy

CBC and the Copeland HWB Forum have fully engaged in the 
strategy and implementation action plan.  The Copeland actions 
and priorities have been integrated into the draft implementation 
plan.

Q2 Develop and initiate priority projects against three 
priority themes

Funding awarded through CCF for Social Prescribing Project.
Healthy Weigh Project being delivered in partnership through 
GLL contract.  Empty Homes Strategy agreed in support of 
Healthy Towns and Places.

Q3 Q3 – Project monitoring -  

KEY DELIVERABLE 15 
Copeland Health and 
Wellbeing Priorities

• Healthy Weight Project 

• Social Prescribing Project 

• Healthy Towns And Places Project 

Q4 Q4 – Annual review of projects. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Implementation, monitoring and review of the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan.

Housing Strategy drafted and approved by Full Council 

Q2 Implementation, monitoring and review of the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan.

Official launch of housing strategy.  Action plan subject to final 
revisions and refinement.

Q3 Implementation, monitoring and review of the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan.

-  

KEY DELIVERABLE 16 
Strategic Housing

Q4 Review of Housing needs and DFG provision. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q2 Workforce Review Workforce Review complete and Strategy drafted.  
In process of gaining approval at CLT, Personnel Panel and 
Executive.

Q3 Work Force Development Plan agreed & in place. -  

KEY DELIVERABLE 17 
Work Force Development 
Plan

Q4 Monitoring and review of action plan. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key DeliverableKEY DELIVERABLE 18 

ICT Strategy

Approval and implementation of
ICT Strategy.
Digital Portals
Website

Q3 ICT Strategy - Final draft agreed

 
some 

rescheduling

ICT Strategy is in process of being drafted. Key research into 
hosted and cloud options has been underway to consider IT 
architecture options for future key platforms.
Final draft for approval expected in Dec 19.

P
age 77

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

6

KEY DELIVERABLE 18 
ICT Strategy

Approval and implementation of
ICT Strategy.
Digital Portals
Website

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q4 Action Plan implemented -  IDOX
Q4 Monitoring of agile access against targets. -  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q2 Develop and draft Financially sustainable options 
for sustainable Long Term Financial Strategy, 
Capital Programme for discussion with the 
Executive.

Finance update provided to the September Executive. Working 
with the Mayor on his budget to present to the Executive in 
January 2020.

Q4 Respond to any Fair Funding or Business Rates 
technical consultations and lobby Government 
setting out the clear financial case for improved 
funding for CBC.

-  

KEY DELIVERABLE 19 
Sustainable Financial 
Strategy

Q4 Agree with Executive financially sustainable Long 
Term Financial Strategy, Capital Programme and 
Treasury Management Strategy.

-  

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q1 Planning permission for refurbishment of 
Crematorium and Installation of second cremator.

Installation of second cremator completed in July 2019.

Q2 Installation of second cremator completed. 
Whitehaven Cemetery expansion plans for decision.

Installation of new second cremator now completed and 
operational (mercury abatement system also on programme for 
completion in November).
Executive Report on expansion plans for Whitehaven Cemetery 
completed with input from CLT and due to be considered and 
approved by Executive on 7 October – funding already 
approved and within 2019/20 Capital Programme

KEY DELIVERABLE 20 
Bereavement Services 
Expansion Programme

Q4 Refurbishment of Crematorium completed - Preparation of tender documents - target August 2019
Tendering Period - target September 2019
Award of Contract - target October 2019
Start of building works - November 2019 (estimated 26 week 
programme).

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key DeliverableKEY DELIVERABLE 21 

Accommodation Strategy Q2 Accommodations Strategy milestones met  

P
age 78



Appendix A

7

KEY DELIVERABLE 21 
Accommodation Strategy

Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Overall Progress of 
Key Deliverable

Q4 Accommodations Strategy milestones met -  

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q2

Target for 
Q2

Value Vs 
Target at 
end of Q2

Was the 
target for 
Q2 met?

How does this compare to 
Q2 of 2018/19

Analysis and notes from 
Managers

Overall 
ANNUAL 
target for 
this KPI

KPI 1.1  Percentage of Council Tax collected 56.56% 48.96% 7.60% 56.56% collected in Q2 2019/20 
compared to

56.14% in Q2 2018/19

95%

KPI 1.2  Number empty homes <6months 
brought back into use 12 12.5 -0.5 35 cumulative total by Q2 

2019/20 compared to
26 in Q2 2018/19

Q1=12, Q=2 23 50 homes

KPI 1.3  Number of new homes approved 108 75 33 108 new homes approved in Q2 
2019/20 compared to
117 in Q2 2018/19

300 homes

KPI 1.4  Number of new homes built 43 75 -32 43 new homes built in  Q2 
2019/20 compared to

18 in Q2 2018/19

300 homes

KPI 1.5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes 
BUILT 0 22.5 -22.5 0 affordable homes built in  Q2 

2019/20 and 0
built in Q2 2018/19

54 affordable homes were approved 
in 2018/19 and we expect to see 
those built over the next couple of 
years.

45 homes

KPI 1.6  Number of larger family and 
aspirational homes built 11 11.25 -0.25 11 affordable homes built in  Q2 

2019/20 compared to 7
built in Q2 2018/19

45 homes

KPI 1.7 External funding for Economic 
Development Secured

£1383499.00
Cumulative 
total at end 
of Q2

£500000.00
annual 
target

£883499.00 1383499.00 secured by Q2 
2019/20 compared to

£265000.00 by Q2 2018/19

£500000.00

KPI 2.1 Additional income generated through 
Commercial activity Target is annual. To be reported Q4 £139000.00

Key Performance Indicators report for Quarter 2 of 2019/20

P
age 81



2

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q2

Target for 
Q2

Value Vs 
Target at 
end of Q2

Was the 
target for 
Q2 met?

How does this compare to 
Q2 of 2018/19

Analysis and notes from 
Managers

Overall 
ANNUAL 
target for 
this KPI

KPI 3.1  Percentage of Non-domestic Rates 
Collected 86.42% 49.74% 36.68% 86.42% collected in Q2 2019/20 

compared to
86.27% in Q2 2018/19

98.70%

KPI 3.2 Local people supported with 
employability and skills 0 15 -15 New KPI for 19/20 Target expected to be met by Q4 65 people

KPI 3.5 a_ Speed of processing - new HB 
claims 6.01 18 -11.99 Average 6 days to process in Q2 

2019/20 compared to 27 days in 
Q1 2018/19

18 days

KPI 3.5 b_ Speed of processing - new CTR 
claims 13.62 18 -4.38 Average 13.62 days to process in 

Q2 2019/20 compared to 39.98 
days in Q1 2018/19

18 days

KPI 3.6 a_ Speed of processing - changes of 
circumstances for HB claims 5.4 10 -4.6 Average 5.4 days to process in 

Q2 2019/20 compared to 26.48 
days in Q1 2018/19

10 days

KPI 3.6 b_ Speed of processing - changes of 
circumstances for CTR claims 3.69 10 -6.31 Average 3.69 days to process in 

Q2 2019/20 compared to 25.1 
days in Q1 2018/19

10 days

KPI 3.8 Homeless relief cases 85% 90% -5% 85% in Q2 2019/20 compared to 
93% in the same quarter in 

2018/19

Performance impacted by housing 
association properties becoming 
available and read to let. When 
these properties take a very long 
time to be turned around this 
reflects in our figures. 

90%

KPI 3.9 Domestic Abuse Project 100% 100% 0% New KPI for 19/20 100%

KPI 4.1 Percentage of complaints resolved at 
stage one 96.00% 90.00% 6.00% 96% in Q2 2019/20 compared to 

96% in Q2 18/19
90.00%

P
age 82



3

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q2

Target for 
Q2

Value Vs 
Target at 
end of Q2

Was the 
target for 
Q2 met?

How does this compare to 
Q2 of 2018/19

Analysis and notes from 
Managers

Overall 
ANNUAL 
target for 
this KPI

KPI 4.2 Percentage of Freedom of information 
requests resolved within timescale 80.60% 90.00% -9.40% 80.60% in Q2 2019/20 compared 

to 87.4% in the same quarter in 
2018/19

178 FOIs opened and close within 
timeframe within Q2.
Timescales impacted by interim 
cover and newly appointed DPO 
only took up post at the end of 
September

90.00%

KPI 4.3 a_ Percentage of household waste 
sent for reuse, recycling and composting  
(NI192)

43.70%
Estimate at 
time of 
reporting

43% 0.7%
Compares to 42.92% in Q2 of 

2018/19

43.00%

KPI 4.3 b_ Percentage reduction in residual 
household waste

3.92%
Estimate at 
time of 
reporting

2% 1.92% Compared to 6.97% in Q2 of 
2018/19

5%

KPI 4.4b Percentage CTAX collected using 
DDeb payment method 63.18% 60% 3.18% 63.18% in Q2 2019/20 compared 

to 61.96% in Q2 2018/19
60%

KPI 5.1 Percentage of 'major' planning 
applications determined within 13 weeks 100.00% 65.00% 35.00% 100% also achieved in Q2 

2018/19
65.00%

KPI 5.2 Percentage of planning 'minor' 
planning applications determined within 8 
weeks

100.00% 80.00% 20.00% Compares to 97.3% in Q2 of 
2018/19

80.00%

KPI 5.3 Percentage of 'other' applications 
determined within 8 weeks 100.00% 80.00% 20.00% Compares to 98.21% in Q2 of 

2018/19
80.00%

KPI 5.4 Percentage of planning appeals 
dismissed 100.00% 80.00% 20.00% 100% also achieved in Q2 

2018/19
80.00%

 

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21/11/19

Internal Audit Review

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Cllr David Moore
Steven Brown, Chief Finance Officer

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Chief Finance Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO AUDIT COMMITTEE?
In accordance with the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan, as agreed by the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 10/04/19, Internal Audit carried out a review of the 
overview and scrutiny function within the Council.  

This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the outcome of the 
Internal Audit review.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the findings of the Internal Audit review of the overview and scrutiny 
function, as set out in paragraph 2 and Appendix A.

2. Note the agreed Management Action Plan in response to the audit 
recommendations, as set out in Appendix B.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating to the 
organisation’s governance, operations and information systems, in 
compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and 
to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 
control and the potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.

2. INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW

2.1. In accordance with the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan, as agreed by the Audit 
and Governance Committee on 10/04/19, Internal Audit carried out a review 
of the overview and scrutiny function. From the areas examined and tested 
as part of this review, Internal Audit consider the current controls operating 
within Overview and Scrutiny provide Reasonable assurance, and one 
medium priority and two advisory priority recommendations were made to 
improve the control environment (for reference Appendix C provides the 
definitions for internal audit assurance opinions and the grading of audit 
recommendations). 

2.2. A summary of the Internal Audit report is included at Appendix A and the 
agreed Management Action Plan at Appendix B.

Page 85

Agenda Item 12



2.3. The Summary of the Internal Audit Review of Overview and Scrutiny 
(Appendix A) was presented to the Audit Committee on 07/11/19.

3. CONCLUSIONS

3.1. The Committee is asked to note the findings of the Internal Audit review.

4. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1. Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from the report.

4.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are:

4.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report.

4.4. EIA Comments: N/A

4.5. Policy Framework: N/A

4.6. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Summary of the Internal Audit Review of Overview and Scrutiny;

Appendix B - Management Action Plan – Matters Arising/Agreed Action Plan;

Appendix C - Audit Assurance Opinions.

Page 86



Appendix A

Summary of the Internal Audit Review of Overview and Scrutiny

Priority of Recommendations
Audit Review Assurance 

Opinion High Medium Advisory
Overview and Scrutiny Reasonable 0 1 2

Summary of key outcomes and recommendations

The Client Sponsor for this review was Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy, and the agreed scope of the audit was:

 Governance arrangements for Scrutiny;
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Forward Plan;
 Effectiveness of Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

There were no instances whereby the audit work undertaken was impaired by the availability of information.

The audit reviewed the current Constitution of the authority; however, changes to the Council resulting from the boundary commission review reduced 
the number Councillors from 51 to 33 (from May 2019) and this has meant that the numbers of Councillors serving on committees has reduced and some 
sub-committees have been disbanded, e.g. Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Committee. The Constitution is currently being reviewed and updated to reflect 
these changes and amendments will be reported to the Standards and Ethics Committee and Full Council.

Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit:
 The current Constitution reflects a culture of challenge and democratic accountability and the organisational culture promotes the values and 

goals of the Authority;
 Terms of reference are incorporated into the current Constitution which clearly define the separate duties of the Executive and OSC;
 A review of the OSC has been included in the Local Government Association Corporate Peer Challenge – “Scrutiny appears to be taken seriously, as 

evidenced through a work plan for the committee, a dedicated scrutiny officer post and topic ideas coming from both Members and officers”;
 Formal induction training on the role and function of the committee is compulsory for those members of the OSC. This training was also open to, 

and attended by, other members of Full Council;
 OSC control their own work programme and the Executive cannot control their work. Suggestions can be made from Full Council and Executive but 

OSC make the final decision;
 The Constitution clarifies that members of the Executive cannot be members of the OSC to ensure the independence of the committee; 
 The full-time Scrutiny Officer promotes the role of, and provides support to, the OSC and liaises between OSC, Executive, Corporate Leadership 

Team, etc. to ensure smooth working relationships;
 Reports and recommendations are submitted to Executive (if the proposals are consistent with the existing budgetary and policy framework), or 

P
age 87



Appendix A

to the Council as appropriate (e.g. if the recommendation would require a departure from or a change to the agreed budget and policy 
framework). To facilitate this there is a standing Executive agenda item “To receive any recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee”;

 Summarised reports of the work of OSC go to Full Council quarterly, with an annual report in quarter four;
 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government guidance on overview and scrutiny have been given due regard by OSC and summarised 

recommendations have been made to Executive;
 Members Code of Conduct and induction training provides safeguards around the sharing of sensitive information with OSC members; and
 Corporate complaints information are reviewed annually by OSC to help inform the Committee’s work programme.

Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements:

High priority issues:
 No issues identified.

Medium priority issues:
 Full Council minutes and the Statement of Executive decisions confirm whether Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommendations are accepted 

or rejected at the initial report stage, but there is no formal process in place to monitor the actual implementation of the recommendations.

Advisory issues:
 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government guidance, in relation to communicating scrutiny’s role to the public, advises that 

authorities should ensure scrutiny has a profile in the wider community. Although members of the public and service users are encouraged to 
participate in the OSC Task and Finish Group process, this is on a case by case basis. There is no communications strategy or process in place to 
engage the public in the role or work of OSC and there is no promotion of the profile for scrutiny in the wider community;

 The organisational changes which took place in July 2018 (with the introduction of the Head of Development, Head of Corporate Resources and 
the Head of Governance and Commercial) included a change in the line management of the Scrutiny Officer role, but the job description has not 
been updated to reflect this change.

Comment from Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee performs a strong and integrated challenge function for the Council which is borne out by the audit findings.  The 
strengths have been clearly identified and provide great assurance that the Committee is performing and reporting effectively.   The recommendations 
are accepted as opportunities to continue to strengthen the monitoring and engagement tools being used.   We are proposing to use a task and finish 
group to ensure the committee consider what other public engagement they would wish to develop /use in their activity and role.

P
age 88



Appendix B

Management Action Plan – Matters Arising/Agreed Action Plan

Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives.
●  Medium priority

Audit finding Management response

(a) Monitoring the implementation of OSC recommendations

OSC reports and recommendations are submitted to Executive (if the proposals are consistent with 
the existing budgetary and policy framework) or to Full Council as appropriate (if the 
recommendation would require a departure from or a change to the agreed budget and policy 
framework).

Although the Statement of Executive decisions is reviewed to confirm whether the Executive 
accept or reject the recommendation at the initial report stage, there is no formal process in place 
to monitor the actual implementation of the recommendations.

OSC recommendations are evidence based, clear and promote the benefit of implementation; 
however, consideration should also be given to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government overview and scrutiny guidance which states that “Recommendations should be 
evidence-based and SMART, i.e. specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and timed.”

Recommendation 1:
A process should be put in place to enable the confirmation of the implementation of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee recommendations.

Agreed management action: 
1. Adopt good practice from other authorities and 

set up a structure/process to monitor and 
ensure co-ordinated log and implementation of 
OSC recommendations.

2. To take structure/process to OSC for agreement 
and add as regular agenda item on OSC 
meetings.

Risk exposure if not addressed:
 OSC recommendations are initially accepted by Executive / Full Council but are not 

implemented in practice;
 Improvements to policies and working practices are not achieved because OSC 

recommendations are not implemented.

Responsible manager for implementing: 
Scrutiny Officer
Date to be implemented:
12/2019

P
age 89



Appendix B

Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts.
●  Advisory issue

Audit finding Management response

(a) Public Engagement

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government guidance states, in relation to 
communicating scrutiny’s role to the public, “authorities should ensure scrutiny has a profile in the 
wider community. Consideration should be given to how and when to engage the authority’s 
communications officers, and any other relevant channels, to understand how to get that message 
across. This will usually require engagement early on in the work programming process” and 
“Authorities should consider how their communications officers can help scrutiny engage with the 
public, and how wider internal expertise and local knowledge from both members and officers 
might make a contribution.”

Members of the public and service users are encouraged to participate in the OSC Task and Finish 
Group process but this is on a case by case basis. There is no strategy or process in place to engage 
the public in the role or work of OSC and there is no promotion of the profile for scrutiny in the 
wider community.

Although there is an Overview and Scrutiny webpage on the Council’s website it last updated May 
2014 and references “Topic ideas for the development of scrutiny work programme 2014-15.” A 
review of the recent News webpage topics does not include any reference to the role of scrutiny, 
nor does the recent Facebook or Twitter pages. The Communications and Engagement Manager 
has confirmed that there is no specific communications strategy for scrutiny, but that they assist 
with the promotion of specific Task and Finish Groups when requested.

Recommendation 2:
Effective digital engagement strategies should be considered to promote the profile and role of 
scrutiny within the wider public and to encourage the public’s participation.

Agreed management action: 
1. Update website and put in quarterly process 

between Scrutiny Officer and Comms Manager 
to ensure quarterly updating of website and 
action any linked OSC comms activity.

2. To take a paper to OSC November Committee 
recommending the setting up of a task and 
finish group on public engagement in OSC.  To 
include within the scoping to review and reset 
the principles for additional public engagement 
to the constitution standards and set out any 
recommendations to Full Council for increased 
public engagement, an implementation plan 
with monitoring and review arrangements.

P
age 90



Appendix B

Risk exposure if not addressed:
 The role of the Scrutiny committee does not have a profile in the wider community;

 There is no public engagement in the role or work of the Scrutiny committee.

Responsible manager for implementing: 
Scrutiny Officer
Date to be implemented:
1)  12/2019     and    2)  04/2020

Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information.
●  Advisory issue

Audit finding Management response

(a) Scrutiny Officer’s Job Description

The Scrutiny Officer’s Job Description was last reviewed in April 2018 and includes general duties 
which reference assisting and working with Legal and Procurement Services, as the role had been 
under the line management of the Solicitor. However, in July 2018, organisational changes took 
place with the introduction of the Head of Development, Head of Corporate Resources and the 
Head of Governance and Commercial. The Scrutiny role subsequently changed to the line 
management of the Electoral and Democratic Services Manager, but the job description has not 
been updated to reflect this change.

Recommendation 3:
The Scrutiny Officer’s Job Description is reviewed to ensure it reflects the current duties and 
responsibilities of the role.

Agreed management action: 
To review and update job profile as part of Aim 
High Process.

Risk exposure if not addressed:
 The job description is out of date and does not accurately reflect the current duties and 

responsibilities of the role.

Responsible manager for implementing: 
Electoral and Democratic Services Manager
Date to be implemented:
03/2020

P
age 91



Appendix C

Audit Assurance Opinions
There are four levels of assurance used; these are defined as follows:

Grading of Audit Recommendations
Audit recommendations are graded in terms of their priority and risk exposure if the issue identified was to remain unaddressed. There are three levels 
of audit recommendations used; high, medium and advisory, the definitions of which are explained below.

Definition:

High ● Significant risk exposure identified arising from a fundamental weakness in the system of internal control

Medium ● Some risk exposure identified from a weakness in the system of internal control 

Advisory ● Minor risk exposure / suggested improvement to enhance the system of control

Definition:

Substantial Sound frameworks of governance, risk management and internal control are in place and are operating effectively. 

Reasonable Frameworks of governance, risk management and internal control are generally sound with some opportunities to further develop 
the frameworks or compliance with them.

Partial Weaknesses in the frameworks of governance, risk management and /or internal control have been identified or there are areas of 
non-compliance with the established control framework which place the achievement of system / service objectives at risk. 

Limited / None There are significant gaps in the governance, risk management and /or internal control frameworks or there are major lapses in 
compliance with the control framework that place the achievement of system / service objectives at significant risk. 

P
age 92



 

Page 1 of 1

Task and Finish Group Monitoring

Task and Finish 
Group

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group

Progress Next Step Estimated 
Completion Date

Member Protocol Cllr Andy Pratt Group met with the Solicitor 
and agreed a Member 
Protocol.

Final report to be presented 
to OSC on 21/11/19.

Q3 2019/20

Recycling Review Cllr Andy Pratt Update on Recycling service 
given to group.

Members to send questions 
on Recycling service 
documents to Scrutiny 
Officer and Community 
Services Manager in 
advance of next meeting.

Q4 2019/20

Older People To be chosen 
at first meeting

Membership of Task and 
Finish group being finalised.

Scoping of project to be 
done at first meeting.

Q4 2019/20

Accessible 
Information Policy

Cllr Andy Pratt Final report to be presented 
to OSC on 21/11/19.

Final report to be presented 
to OSC on 21/11/19.

Q3 2019/20

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 14



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Standing Items

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer

Executive Forward Plan All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider.

Chief Executive

Update from Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee

Employment, Skill and Social 
Wellbeing

To receive an update from 
the Cumbria Health and 
Scrutiny Committee from 
the nominated Copeland 
representative.

Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Update from the Single 
Table Trade Union Group 
(STTUG) Representative

Strengthening the Way We 
Operate

To receive an update from 
the Single Table Trade Union 
Group (STTUG) from the 
nominated Overview and 
Scrutiny representative. 

Human Resources Manager

Housing Employment, Skill and Social 
Wellbeing/Strengthening 
the Way We Operate

To receive any reports from 
the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager.

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager

Task and Finish Group 
Updates

All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and 
Finish Groups.

Scrutiny Officer

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work 
Programme

Strengthening the Way We 
Operate

For the Committee to plan 
their work for the municipal 
year.

Scrutiny Officer

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 15



Agenda Items for Committee Meetings

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

2019
OSC Audit Report All Report on the internal audit 

of the Overview and 
Scrutiny function of 
Copeland Council.

Director of Financial 
Services

Accessible Information 
Policy Task and Finish 
Group Report

Strengthening the Way 
We Operate

Final report from the 
Accessible Information 
Policy Task and Finish 
Group.

Scrutiny Officer

Member Protocol Task 
and Finish Group 
Report

Strengthening the Way 
We Operate

Final report from the 
Member Protocol Task and 
Finish Group.

Scrutiny Officer

2019/20 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Borough Council at the end 
of quarter two of 2019/20.

Director of Financial 
Services

21st 
November 
2019

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Borough 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2019/20.

Performance and Risk 
Management Officer

P
age 96



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

Presentation from 
Tourism Sector 
Development Officer

Town Centre 
Regeneration

Presentation from the 
Tourism Sector 
Development Officer on 
their plan for increasing 
tourism in Copeland. 

Tourism Sector 
Development Officer

Presentation from 
Empty Homes Officer

Town Centre 
Regeneration

Presentation from the 
Empty Homes Officer on 
their work so far and their 
work programme.

Empty Homes Officer

19th 
December 
2019

Presentation on 
Regeneration 
(including town funds 
and borderlands)

Employment Skills and 
Social Wellbeing, 
Strengthening the Way 
We Operate, Town 
Centre Regeneration

A presentation on the 
regeneration progress of 
Copeland.

Economic and 
Community 
Regeneration 
Manager

2020
14th January 
2020
(Special 
Meeting)

Budget All The Mayor shall present 
their draft Budget proposals 
for 2020/21.

Director of Financial 
Resources

P
age 97



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

Millom Hub Employment, Skills and 
Social Wellbeing, 
Strengthening the Way 
We Operate, Town 
Centre Regeneration

An update and presentation 
on the principles and 
progress of CBC in engaging 
with and developing with 
Cumbria County Council a 
services Hub at Millom.

Customer Services 
Team Leader/Director 
of Growth and 
Inclusive 
Communities/Cumbria 
County Council Area 
Manager

Leisure Contract Employment, Skills and 
Social Wellbeing, 
Strengthening the Way 
We Operate

An overview of the existing 
contract performance, plans 
and preparations for 
tendering a new contract.

Director of Growth 
and Inclusive 
Communities

Millom and Cleator 
Moor Stronger Town 
Funds

Town Centre 
Regeneration

Overview of guidance from 
government and 
opportunity to offer input 
to the Town Fund Boards.

Director of Growth 
and Inclusive 
Communities

6th February 
2020

Social Inclusion Update All Opportunity to scrutinise 
2019/20 year and overview 
plans for 2020/21 Social 
Inclusion Programme.

Director of Growth 
and Inclusive 
Communities/Strategic 
Housing and Social 
Inclusion 
Manager/Policy 
Officer

P
age 98



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

Future High Street 
Fund

Employment Skills and 
Social Wellbeing, Town 
Centre Regeneration

Final business case 
overview before considered 
by Executive and sent to 
Government at the end of 
April 2020

Economic and 
Community 
Regeneration 
Manager

2019/20 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2019/20.

Director of Financial 
Resources

6th April 2020

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2019/20.

Performance and Risk 
Management Officer

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2019
	4 Executive Forward Plan
	8 Member Protocol Task and Finish Group Report
	General Protocol for Planning and Licensing members - v3 with first round TFG amendments - 12.11.19
	Protocol for site visits - 12.11.19 with SEC amendments

	9 Accessible Information Policy Review Task and Finish Group Report
	FINAL Accessible Information Policy v0.6

	10 2019/20 Finance Report - Quarter 2
	Q2 1920 Budget Monitoring Report V1

	11 2019/20 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 2
	Appendix A-Key Deliverables Monitoring for Q2 of 2019-20
	Appendix  B- KPI Monitoring for Q2 of 2019-20

	12 OSC Audit Report
	14 Task and Finish Group Monitoring
	15 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

